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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Good afternoon.

          3  I am Gale Brewer, Chair of the Committee on

          4  Technology in Government, and I want to welcome all

          5  of you here today to talk about improving student

          6  achievement through technology.

          7                 We will hear in a minute from the

          8  great chair of the Education Committee, Robert

          9  Jackson, and it is an honor to be sitting here with

         10  him.

         11                 What I want to say in terms of my

         12  opening remarks is that there are so many benefits

         13  of technology.  In education, we do not do

         14  technology for technologies sake, we do it to

         15  enhance student achievement, to increase family

         16  involvement, to improve teaching skills, and to

         17  improve administration and management.  The use of

         18  technology in our city schools comes in different

         19  forms.  The Department of Education has a five- year

         20  capital budget, and to their credit, they recognize

         21  the importance of technology.  The overall capital

         22  spending for technology enhancement was increased

         23  from $769.2 million to $935.3 million because of

         24  funding from the State of New York, and that is very

         25  much thanks to the staff of DOE.
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          2                 Access to computers in 2004, there

          3  were an estimated 176,000 computers in city schools,

          4  or one computer for every six students, and we will

          5  be asking the Department of Education if that has

          6  changed in the last couple of years.

          7                 Obviously, access to the Internet is

          8  important, 1,350 of 1,420 after- schools have been

          9  cabled for Internet access, and 1,330 of them have

         10  wireless technology in the classrooms, and we will

         11  ask more about that.

         12                 Obviously, technology in the schools

         13  perhaps the most important component in my

         14  experience is professional development.  In 2001,

         15  some years ago in a study of schools, 56 percent of

         16  teachers reported that they did not have technology

         17  PD.  I know that that has changed, and we will learn

         18  more about that today.

         19                 In terms of technology support, in

         20  2004, the average Dell response time was seven- and-

         21  a- half business days for a technician to fix a

         22  computer in a school, and we will learn more about

         23  that, and hope it has improved.  I think it has.

         24                 Strategy for the Implementation of

         25  Technology in the Schools.  In 2004, the Department

                                                            7

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT AND EDUCATION

          2  of Education laid out some themes as a foundation

          3  for thinking about technology, obviously reliable,

          4  secure, high speed network infrastructure, building

          5  a substantial amount of computers in the classroom,

          6  and one that is also sustainable, training as we

          7  talked earlier, for teachers and there were some

          8  initiatives, the on- line web portal, which has been

          9  very much enhanced, piloting best practices, and

         10  evaluation which is extremely important, and the

         11  plan for a cohesive approach to technology.

         12                 I am also delighted to say that Jeff

         13  Baker is here from the Technology Committee in terms

         14  of Counsel, and Colleen Pagter who is the Policy

         15  Analyst, and I am sure that the chair of Education

         16  Committee will introduce his great staff.  I also

         17  want to thank Tyler Smith from my office, and Bruce

         18  Lye (phonetic), Chief of Staff.

         19                 In my office I am involved with this

         20  because in District 3 we have a one- to- one project

         21  which you will hear about where we have worked hard

         22  with private companies, and the Department of

         23  Education, professional development with the UFT and

         24  the Department of Education, and certainly thinking

         25  about ways that we can provide maintenance.
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          2  Maintenance professional development, and of course,

          3  hardware and parent involvement are the keys to a

          4  successful program.

          5                 So, I look forward to the hearing

          6  today, and I turn it over to my co- chair, Chair of

          7  the Education Committee, Robert Jackson.

          8                 CO- CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you,

          9  Council Member Gale Brewer.  Let me just say that

         10  this City Council could not have a finer individual

         11  than yourself as a chair of the Technology

         12  Committee.  So you are an advocate clearly,

         13  shoulders above all the other members in the City

         14  Council when it comes to technology.

         15                 So, let me just say to you, I want to

         16  thank you for moving forward this hearing today,

         17  even though today is June 27th, 2006, and we are on

         18  the verge of finalizing the City's Budget of

         19  approximately $53 billion.  Some people would say

         20  why are you holding a technology and education

         21  hearing when you are dealing with the budget.

         22  Simply said, technology does not wait for anyone.

         23  It moves forward, and if you think that technology

         24  will wait for you, you are wrong because as soon as

         25  we leave this room something else is being invented
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          2  in order to move us forward.

          3                 Hopefully technology will be used in

          4  the most positive ways, not only here in New York

          5  City but throughout the entire universe with respect

          6  to positive things to improve life, health,

          7  education, and not destructive things such as death.

          8

          9                 So, I want to thank you Gale for

         10  sharing this committee hearing with me today.  But

         11  some of you may remember that my- the former chair

         12  of the Education Committee, Eva Moskowitz, who was

         13  the head of the Education Committee, we held a

         14  hearing on technology in schools, and we learned a

         15  lot from that hearing, and one of the things that we

         16  learned is that technology resources are not spread

         17  evenly throughout our system.  Another fact we

         18  learned is that in some places, we have hardware

         19  sitting around that is not being used, either

         20  because the equipment is broken or there is limited

         21  connectivity to the Internet, or because teachers do

         22  not know how to integrate technology into their

         23  lesson plans.

         24                 Another issue that kept coming up in

         25  that hearing is that we do not have the resources to
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          2  use technology in schools in the way that we would

          3  like.  One of the things that the Department of

          4  Education said is that if we had CFE funding from

          5  the State, a lot more would be possible.  Well as we

          6  all know, the State Legislature and the Governor

          7  have finally come up with a plan to implement half

          8  of the CFE decision, and in fact, Governor Pataki

          9  signed legislation allocating $11.2 billion over the

         10  next five years for capital improvements and we are

         11  heading to the highest court, the Court of Appeals,

         12  in September on a hearing concerning the $5.6

         13  billion in operating money.

         14                 So now the question is, given that we

         15  have more funding as Council Member Brewer gave in

         16  the May Amendment to the five year capital plan, the

         17  amount of capital money allocated to technology

         18  enhancements, is approximately $935 million which

         19  reflects an increase of approximately $160 million

         20  from what was allocated in the previous plan.  How

         21  are we going to solve some of the problems that came

         22  up in the last hearing?  How are we going to use the

         23  money to ensure that we meet our targets in terms of

         24  students and teachers access to technology, and how

         25  are we going to train our teachers to integrate
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          2  technology effectively into their lesson plans?

          3                 I do not have the answers to these

          4  questions, but hopefully, when we come out here

          5  today we will have a better understanding in trying

          6  to answer some of these questions.

          7                 So in other words, we will be asking

          8  and I know that Gale will especially because she is

          9  the expert in this area, she will be asking many

         10  questions to follow up on the last hearing, and so

         11  without further ado, I am going to turn it over to

         12  our leader, Gale Brewer, the head of the Technology

         13  Committee.

         14                 Oh, I am sorry Gale, I did not

         15  introduce the staff and my staff, without them I do

         16  not know where I would be.

         17                 Scheherezade Salimi is sitting to my

         18  left, she is the general Counsel.  Jennifer Culp and

         19  Jan Atwell are our Policy Analysts, and Regina

         20  Poreda is the Finance Policy Analyst, and those are

         21  the members of the Education Committee staff that

         22  help us to carry out our policies and procedures,

         23  and implement all of the things that we are doing.

         24                 I want to thank you for allowing me

         25  to introduce the staff that I am working with, and I
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          2  will turn it back over to you, Council Member

          3  Brewer.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

          5  much, Chair Jackson.  We have been joined by Council

          6  Member Melinda Katz, Chair of Land Use and from

          7  Queens.  Thank you very much, we are just getting

          8  started.

          9                 So the first panel is Troy Fischer,

         10  Director of the Office of Instructional Technology

         11  at the New York City Department of Education, and

         12  Irwin Kroot, Chief Information Officer also at the

         13  New York City Department of Education.

         14                 Thank you very much for joining us

         15  here today.

         16                 Good morning, whomever would like to

         17  start should start.

         18                 MR. KROOT:  Good afternoon

         19  Chairperson Brewer, Chairperson Jackson, members of

         20  the Committee.

         21                 My name is Irwin Kroot, CIO at the

         22  New York City Department of Education, Chief

         23  Information Officer.

         24                 It is a pleasure to be here today to

         25  discuss the vital topic of "Improving Student
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          2  Achievement through Technology" with you, along with

          3  my colleague, the Director of the Office of

          4  Instructional Technology for the New York City

          5  Department of Education, Troy Fischer.

          6                 I would like to begin with a

          7  discussion of the developments in technology at the

          8  Department of Education since the City Council

          9  Committee on Education's last hearing looking at the

         10  issue of technology in schools in April 2004.

         11                 I will then turn the floor over to

         12  Mr. Fischer, who will discuss the many

         13  instructionally- focused technology initiatives in

         14  place and planned at the Department of Education.

         15                 Perhaps the most important factor

         16  influencing the direction of technology during the

         17  past two years at the Department of Education has

         18  been the adoption by the Chancellor's Senior

         19  Leadership Team of an IT governance structure.  For

         20  the past 15 months, we have had an IT Steering

         21  Committee in place. This Committee is composed of

         22  members of the Chancellor's Senior Leadership Team,

         23  and is chaired by my boss, the Deputy Chancellor for

         24  Finance and Administration, Kathleen Grimm.

         25                 The Committee meets monthly to set
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          2  policy and priorities for the use of technology

          3  resources across the Department of Education.  In

          4  addition, the DOE has had a cross divisional IT

          5  Oversight Committee in place for more than two

          6  years, with management participation from all of the

          7  major divisions of the DOE.

          8                 The Oversight Committee generally

          9  meets weekly, and is charged with reviewing the

         10  functionality and the business case for all major

         11  technology projects across the DOE, defined as those

         12  projects with a DOE- wide impact, those with

         13  interfaces with existing Department applications,

         14  and/or those with a high cost. Because of the

         15  existence of these two committees, we are able to

         16  look for more cohesively at the Department's

         17  technology projects than in the past, and we can

         18  ensure that the greatest proportion of IT resources

         19  are going to the agreed- upon areas of highest

         20  priority across the Department.

         21                 The IT Steering Committee has clearly

         22  defined three priority areas for IT investment; the

         23  Chancellor's Children First- based Accountability

         24  Initiative, which will totally revamp system- wide

         25  data access and analytics in direct support of
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          2  improved student achievement; overall support for

          3  instructional technology in schools and classrooms;

          4  and support for the Department's set of key Human

          5  Resources initiatives knows as Project Home Run.  We

          6  work together continuously across our governance

          7  structure to ensure that the technology needs for

          8  each of these priority areas is met to the best of

          9  our abilities.

         10                 Other significant accomplishments

         11  that have direct or indirect positive impacts on our

         12  ability to improve the use of technology to support

         13  student achievement since the last technology-

         14  focused hearing in 2004 have included all of the

         15  following:

         16                 A consolidation of the DOE's

         17  mainframe into the City's Department of Information

         18  Technology and Telecommunications' data center,

         19  allowing us to eliminate the duplication of effort

         20  and cost associated with the maintenance of separate

         21  data centers; the nearly- completed build- out of an

         22  Optical Fiber Ring linking the Regional Operations

         23  Centers and our central Metrotech location, as a key

         24  component toward supporting reliable

         25  interconnectivity among all of our schools and other
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          2  buildings; a major virus remediation and prevention

          3  effort in all of our schools; support for IP/Digital

          4  Video Surveillance, video surveillance using the

          5  Internet, devices placed in more than 60 buildings

          6  serving over 160 schools, with an additional 50

          7  school buildings in the design phase; collaboration

          8  with the School Construction Authority to ensure

          9  that new and restructured schools are built out with

         10  appropriate technology standards to support

         11  technology needs, now and in coming years to the

         12  extent that that is possible, given Chairperson

         13  Jackson as you aptly said, how quickly technology

         14  needs grow and change; completion this fall, through

         15  the Department's Project Connect program, of

         16  installation of wired and/or wireless Internet

         17  access and connectivity to every one of the

         18  Department of Education's active classrooms; the

         19  implementation of a standard data warehousing

         20  effort, in collaboration with the State Education

         21  Department, to allow for standard student data

         22  reporting for all students across the State of New

         23  York; management of the acquisition and support for

         24  more than 50,000 new computers per year, with a

         25  current count of approximately 300,000 computers in
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          2  schools and classrooms throughout the system;

          3  continuous improvements to the Department of

          4  Education's website to improve access to information

          5  about and for our schools; and combined efforts with

          6  teaching and learning to develop and roll out

          7  innovative, student- focused applications such as

          8  the ground- breaking FitnessGram tool that was

          9  highlighted as a national first just last week.

         10                 We have made significant improvements

         11  in supporting the ever expanding need for technology

         12  services and support across the school system over

         13  the past two years.  Our central technology help

         14  desk, outsourced in the summer of 2005, is now

         15  handling more than 250,000 calls per year with an

         16  average hold time that has decreased from five and a

         17  half minutes last year to 40 seconds this year.  Our

         18  managed services program, providing break/fix

         19  support to schools and central offices, is now

         20  consistently meeting our service level agreements

         21  for next day or second day service on in- warranty

         22  devices in 99 percent of all cases across the

         23  system.  Overall satisfaction with the break/fix

         24  services provided has been rated this year by

         25  schools with a 4.6 rating out of a possible 5.0.
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          2                 While a goal of 100 percent access to

          3  and support for all needed technology in all schools

          4  may be unattainable, we are continuing to focus our

          5  efforts on identifying the areas of most critical

          6  need and addressing those areas, working

          7  collaboratively with our peers who have

          8  instructional technology responsibilities at the

          9  central, regional and school levels.

         10                 We are also using the "bully pulpit"

         11  of being the largest school system in the nation to

         12  continue to innovate with educational organizations

         13  and vendors to set appropriate standards and

         14  direction for improvements in products and services

         15  that will better support technology use in the

         16  classroom.

         17                 As an example, two major initiatives

         18  to develop the next generation of student mobile

         19  computing devices are underway, one led by Intel and

         20  on spearheaded through an organization called

         21   "Project Inkwell".  We have stayed in close contact

         22  with each, providing the feedback that will ensure

         23  that the needs of New York City's public school

         24  students are fairly represented as the marketplace

         25  moves forward.
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          2                 The explosion of technology in our

          3  schools carries with it a heavy responsibility for

          4  maintenance, support and innovation.  That is the

          5  role that the Division of Instructional and

          6  Information Technology which I lead, with dedicated

          7  work by exceptionally talented senior managers and

          8  staff, plays in the Department of Education.  We

          9  recognize, though, that all of these efforts are

         10  important primarily to the extent that they help in

         11  achieving the overall goals of children first- to

         12  create an environment in which each child can learn

         13  to the best of his or her abilities.

         14                 To speak about the direction of the

         15  vital instructional technology initiatives of the

         16  Department, I would like to introduce Troy Fisher,

         17  Director of the DOE's Office of Instructional

         18  Technology.

         19                 Afterward, I will be happy to respond

         20  to any questions that you may have.  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you.

         22                 Before Mr. Fischer speaks, I just

         23  want to make sure- we have been joined by Council

         24  Member Peter Vallone, Council Member Simcha Felder,

         25  and I know that Council Member Maria del Carmen
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          2  Arroyo was here.  She may have stepped out because

          3  we are in the middle of the Budget negotiations.

          4  Okay, she went next door, and she will come back.

          5                 Go ahead, and thank you very much Mr.

          6  Fischer.

          7                 MR. FISCHER:  Thank you.

          8                 Good afternoon Chairs Jackson, and

          9  Brewer, and members of the Education and Technology

         10  Committee.

         11                 Again, my name is Troy Fischer and I

         12  serve as the Director for the Office of

         13  Instructional Technology.

         14                 Communication networks and Internet

         15  access are transforming our schools into virtual,

         16  ongoing learning centers and bringing the academic

         17  power to anytime, anywhere learning to a reality.

         18  Integrating technology changes the way instruction

         19  is delivered and received in our classrooms, in our

         20  schools, in our libraries, and of course, in our

         21  homes.  Boundaries of teaching and learning extend

         22  beyond the confines of yesterday's classrooms.

         23                 It is, therefore, a pleasure for me

         24  to address the City Council today and to discuss the

         25  role in which technology plays in enhancing the
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          2  educational experience of both teachers and

          3  students.  I hope to highlight the progress the

          4  Department of Education has made since our last

          5  testimony over two years ago, and give the Committee

          6  members a sense of the impact of technology in our

          7  schools.

          8                 Since 2004, the New York City

          9  Department of education has established a five

         10  pronged approach to student achievement.  ICoach,

         11  iLead, iTeach, iLearn and iSite; the "i" is for

         12  INSTRUCTION first and foremost of each of these

         13  programs, with the goal of providing instructional

         14  technology solutions for a target audience.

         15                 ICoach, our first initiative,

         16  provided mobile professionals, our literacy and math

         17  coaches, traveling from class- to- class and school-

         18  to- school, require ready access to instructional

         19  resources to provide professional development to a

         20  wide range of teachers.  As a result of the success

         21  of the iCoach program, the New York City Department

         22  of Education expanded the participation to include:

         23  Mentors, Library Media Specialists, English Language

         24  Arts Learners Specialists, Special Education

         25  Specialists, Early Childhood Specialists, and many
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          2  more that serve as the professional developers in

          3  the City.  OIT has trained over 5,000 participants

          4  to use technology to enhance the receipt and

          5  delivery of professional development.

          6                 ILead, our second prong, seeks to

          7  empower local and regional administrators, to

          8  provide automated and info- mated tools to enhance

          9  the planning, support and maintenance of their

         10  school's comprehensive educational plan.

         11                 ITeach- iLearn is a culmination of

         12  building the technological and human infrastructures

         13  to provide 1:1 computing in 22 middle schools around

         14  the City, which is supported by both Capital, Tax

         15  Levy and Title IID funds and has four major project

         16  goals.  One of which is to provide rich and

         17  equitable resources to improve teaching and

         18  learning, to improve collaborative learning

         19  environments for teachers and students, to increase

         20  student engagement and to increase the internal and

         21  external communications among teachers, students,

         22  parents and administrators.

         23                 Over 22 schools, two in each Region

         24  and District 75, were selected by Regional

         25  Superintendents because of their instructional
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          2  leadership, school infrastructure readiness and

          3  desire to be part of the initiative.  In iTeach, 400

          4  sixth grade core content area teachers and

          5  administrators received instructional technology

          6  toolkits and professional development to enhance the

          7  instructional environment.  Over 85 hours of

          8  professional development is offered in an effort to

          9  provide instructors with the readiness and

         10  confidence required to bring their students into the

         11  second phase of the project, iLearn.

         12                 The iLearn toolkits include mobile

         13  computing devices, either Apple iBooks or IBM Tablet

         14  PCs, digitized curriculum, standardized

         15  instructional software, communication, and

         16  presentation software and course management

         17  software.  In addition, Computrace, a "lo- jack"-

         18  type device, will assist in locating stolen or lost

         19  equipment.

         20                 The exciting interactive environment

         21  that is the iTeach- iLearn classroom, utilizes

         22  additional resources to support the realization of

         23  the aforementioned goals, including interactive

         24  white boards, mobile presentation stations, network

         25  printers, wireless network access and device lockers
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          2  to charge and store computers safely.  By the end of

          3  this current year, over 4,500 sixth grade students

          4  received their technology toolkits with training.

          5  Over the next two years, over 15,000 students will

          6  take their toolkits with them as they move up to the

          7  seventh and eighth grade.  Each year one grade will

          8  be added to the program.

          9                 Schools have formed iTeams,

         10  Implementation Teams, comprised of the school

         11  leadership team, school technician and students.  An

         12  iSquad, student technicians powered by MOUSE, will

         13  be trained to provide technical assistance to each

         14  teacher in the classroom and a depot manager will be

         15  trained to manage the inventory, assist with repair,

         16  help- desk interaction and "swap out" the faulty

         17  machines.

         18                 Lastly of the 5- prong approach is

         19  iSite, an instructional portal serves as the

         20  professional development and communication and

         21  collaboration hub for the iTeach- iLearn program,

         22  providing curriculum resources and will grow to

         23  include other programs.  Opportunities for

         24  collaboration and interdisciplinary projects are

         25  enhanced through eChalk web services for email and
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          2  other collaborative tools, all within a wireless

          3  environment supported by DIIT and Project Connect.

          4                 Teachers will work collaboratively

          5  with each other, sharing lesson plans and ideas for

          6  interdisciplinary approaches to the delivery of the

          7  curriculum.  As an example, a math problem employs

          8  the use of on- line math manipulatives and Geometer

          9  Sketchpad software to learn about the Pythagorean

         10  Theorem.  What begins in math class can continue

         11  with the social studies instructor navigating a web

         12  quest about Pythagoras and the politics of education

         13  in his area.  In science, students can investigate

         14  and research the use of this theorem in the most

         15  likely and unlikely places.  The literacy instructor

         16  can assist in the effort to "pull it all together"

         17  by challenging students to present what they have

         18  learned in written, spoken, projected format, and

         19  with some thanks to Garage Band software, perhaps

         20  composed musically.

         21                 With the speed and ease of

         22  communication made possible through the use of the

         23  instructional technology toolkits, teachers will be

         24  able to quickly share and incorporate best practices

         25  into their daily instructional environments. Today,
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          2  a new teacher struggling with the question of how to

          3  make a grammar assignment more engaging can receive

          4  quick access to best practice, videos, and vignettes

          5  that contain effective and engaging grammar lessons,

          6  through the use of the instructional portal and

          7  other on- line resources.

          8                 Students are excited to learn in a

          9  classroom that is much more dynamic and student-

         10  centered.  We are creating an environment where

         11  teachers can provide students with differentiated

         12  instruction, example, learning experiences that are

         13  customized to their interests and skills.

         14  Communication and course management software

         15  facilitates student- to- student, student- to-

         16  teacher and teacher- to- teacher communications and

         17  collaboration.

         18                 This project is being evaluated over

         19  the next three years to study the effectiveness in

         20  design, process, implementation and effect on

         21  student achievement, attitude and classroom

         22  effectiveness.

         23                 Although the iTeach- iLearn project

         24  is currently an in- school program, we will ensure

         25  that parents are included in the understanding the
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          2  role of technology plays in their children's

          3  education, and the values of the Internet best

          4  practices, security and cyber safety.

          5                 This project is one of the many that

          6  the DOE has accomplished over the last two years.

          7  By building an infrastructure through Enhancing

          8  Education Through Technology, or Title IID, and

          9  other grant monies, regions and departments have

         10  expanded their instructional programs through the

         11  use of technology, serving as models for the city

         12  and for the country. Evaluation data link to these

         13  programs include improved attendance, increased

         14  motivation for writing and other learning, better

         15  problem- solving skills, more time on task, better

         16  attendance and increased performance on ELA and math

         17  scores.

         18                 Some examples make us particularly

         19  proud.  In our early grades, Reading First employs

         20  the use of handheld technology to provide teachers

         21  and students with critical just in time evaluation

         22  data to drive the skill of reading improvement for

         23  our young learners.  Reading First serves nearly

         24  30,000 of our most needy students.

         25                 True integration of technology into
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          2  the curriculum is accomplished with a

          3  videoconferencing program, Bronx WRITeS. This

          4  integrated model incorporates literacy and

          5  performing arts as it utilizes videoconference

          6  technology for school- to- school mentoring,

          7  collaboration and Poetry Slam competition events.

          8  Students use laptops to edit and publish their work.

          9  Blogs allow web publishing and receive feedback for

         10  authentic audiences.

         11                 To close the digital divide, Title

         12  IID funding allows remarkable progress toward the

         13  goal of integrating technology in the classroom,

         14  especially in schools where children often do not

         15  have access to technology in their homes.  The most

         16  challenged schools now have the latest technology

         17  including mobile laptops with Internet connectivity,

         18  digital video cameras, and laser printers.  Teachers

         19  are trained how to use the technology to expand

         20  standards- based instruction while preparing our

         21  students for the twenty first century.

         22                 A middle school partnership with Dell

         23  Computers, the Dell TechKnow Program, engages our

         24  at- risk school students in an innovative after-

         25  school program of technology education. Students
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          2  learn to assemble and disassemble refurbished

          3  computers. Upon the successful completion of the

          4  program, students earn the right to bring home the

          5  computer they assembled.  Over the past two years,

          6  the Dell TechKnow Program has reached over 1,700

          7  students across the City.

          8                 Additional partnerships and Title IID

          9  funds are significant in improving students'

         10  academic performance in math, science and English.

         11  By supplying our at- risk students with technology-

         12  based programs we improve their literacy skills and

         13  their confidence in handling grade level math and

         14  science content.

         15                 Internet and video resources bring

         16  sites such as NASA, and the Museum of National

         17  History and the Bronx Zoo directly into the

         18  classroom.  Students visit places and interact with

         19  off- site experts around the world without even

         20  leaving their schools.  Learning goes beyond the

         21  limits of texts.

         22                 The Academy of Information Technology

         23  is a high school program that offers students

         24  courses in programming, office applications,

         25  computer networking, system support and maintenance,
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          2  database design, et cetera, as well as

          3  interdisciplinary curriculum that includes public

          4  speaking and interviewing workshops to enhance self-

          5  esteem.  An annual student conference offers

          6  students to opportunity to network with fellow

          7  students, company representatives and post secondary

          8  institutions on issues relating from career choices

          9  in IT, post- secondary opportunities and

         10  internships.  Academic learning experiences and

         11  technology are combined with hands- on work

         12  experience to help students develop the thinking and

         13  problem- solving skills so critical to post-

         14  secondary education and career success.

         15                 I began this testimony by saying the

         16   "technology networks and Internet access are

         17  transforming our schools into virtual, ongoing

         18  learning centers and bringing the academic power of

         19  anywhere, anytime learning to reality."

         20                 In order to make this a reality for

         21  every one of our students we need to continue to

         22  provide professional development that will give our

         23  teachers the change management tools they need to

         24  meet this goal.

         25                 We need to provide localized "in-
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          2  house" technical support by leveraging vendor,

          3  corporate and higher ed partnerships; leveraging our

          4  students to play a role in the support and delivery

          5  of technology; and building the capacity in our

          6  schools to "coach" our teachers.  In short, we need

          7  to support the "mission critical" work of delivering

          8  instruction to teachers and students.

          9                 Over the past two summers alone, OIT

         10  has enrolled upwards of 7,000 teachers and other

         11  professionals for professional development, and

         12  expects that number to increase greatly this summer.

         13    This is significant, but not nearly enough to

         14  change and sustain academic growth.  And so, I thank

         15  you for holding this hearing on this most important

         16  topic so that we can continue to work together to

         17  achieve the technology- rich environments for each

         18  and every one of our students.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

         20  much.

         21                 We have been joined by Council Member

         22  Jimmy Vacca, and we have questions starting with

         23  Council Member Katz.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Thank you.

         25                 I do not know- I did not get to read
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          2  our entire briefing for today's oversight hearing,

          3  but I know I had a question, I was curious when I

          4  came in here on two levels.  One is technical level

          5  about the computers in the school system.

          6                 Do you have any figures on how much

          7  the Department of Education has funded for the

          8  computers versus the council members, and when they

          9  add it together, how much that is all together?

         10                 MR. KROOT:  Actually, I do not have

         11  the numbers on the specific dollar amounts for Reso.

         12  A funding, although we do have Ling Tan here who

         13  manages our capital budget and Reso. A funding.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Do you have the

         15  numbers of like how many computers, laptops and

         16  table computers there are citywide, and the

         17  percentage that DOE purchased?

         18                 MR. KROOT:  We have up to date

         19  numbers.

         20                 As of the beginning of June, we had a

         21  total of 329,000 computers in schools.  That does

         22  not include the administrative computers in

         23  administrative offices.  That is 306,000 desktops,

         24  and 23,000 and change laptops.  Because computers by

         25  and large are purchased by schools individually,

                                                            33

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT AND EDUCATION

          2  using their own funds, we could pull together the

          3  number of

          4  city--.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  They are

          6  usually done individually with their own funds?

          7                 You should probably tell my schools

          8  that because that is not happening in my district.

          9                 MR. KROOT:  There is not a central

         10  pool of funding for putting computers in schools.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  So the schools

         12  then individually have money put aside for

         13  computers?

         14                 MR. KROOT:  Some schools choose to

         15  use their funds in that way.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Some schools

         17  choose to use their funding, so it is expense as

         18  opposed to capital?

         19                 MR. KROOT:  That is correct.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  And do the

         21  schools have a capital allocation that they are also

         22  able to draw upon, or no?

         23                 MR. KROOT:  We are going to ask Ling

         24  Tan to join us on this, the capital question.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Let me just

                                                            34

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT AND EDUCATION

          2  tell you why I am asking, I am asking for a specific

          3  reason.  We use our capital funds in order to buy

          4  computers for the schools.

          5                 I was under the impression that if a

          6  school has computers or does not have computers, it

          7  really is the choice of the Department of Education

          8  not the individual school.  So, and also what funds

          9  they are drawing upon, if they do get it themselves,

         10  whether it is expense of capital.

         11                 MS. TAN:  Okay, my name is Ling Tan.

         12  I oversee some of the capital plans.

         13                 To answer your first question, we

         14  spend an average of $65 million a year for what we

         15  call end user equipment student teachers (phonetic),

         16  an average of 25- 25 generally is from the Reso. A,

         17  that is the ratio 45 to 25.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  So the Council

         19  pays for like a third of the computers?

         20                 MS. TAN:  Right, it basically

         21  compliments the different schools, and based on the

         22  size, and separately some of the schools who are

         23  more proactive, who go out and seek their

         24  independent grant, pieces here and there, between

         25  these two, there is an effort to get them to the
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          2  ratio at least of two- to one.  We were six or

          3  seven- to- one, and there is a disparity from school

          4  to school in that sense where we are at today.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  When you say

          6  two- to- one, you mean for every two students, one

          7  computer?

          8                 MS. TAN:  Right.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Some of the

         10  schools are getting wired from the Department of

         11  Education?  So, how do you make that determination?

         12  Like you said, there are some discrepancies here.

         13  So, how do you make the determination of when you

         14  are doing which school?

         15                 MS. TAN:  The core infrastructure in

         16  the schools is the centralized DOE program that

         17  every school will get the same standard.

         18                 So, every classroom will have three

         19  Internet drops, so it is consistent for every

         20  instructional room.  The way the funding has been

         21  going is that we hit the school with the highest

         22  poverty rate first, according to the Title I--.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  The highest

         24  what?

         25                 MR. TAN:  Poverty rate.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Poverty rate.

          3                 MS. TAN:  Right, based on the Title I

          4  application. So, we have been going to this point,

          5  we are almost finished with every school.  We are

          6  touching the schools at the Styvesants and the Bronx

          7  Science now.

          8                 So by the fall, we should be finished

          9  for all the schools that is active as of last school

         10  year.  So any new schools that is coming up, SCA is

         11  supposed to construct the new space to standard.  So

         12  in that sense, they are all consistent.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  So by

         14  September, every single classroom in every single

         15  Department of Education school is going to have

         16  three Internet drops?

         17                 MR.TAN:  Right, that is the standard.

         18    You have some special ed school where the kids are

         19  maybe four, they may get one drop.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Right.

         21                 Can I have your number?

         22                 Can I ask a question that does not

         23  have anything to do with computers because it is

         24  something that has been one of my pet peeves for

         25  years, so I am curious as to the answer, and you may
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          2  not know the answer?

          3                 I understand that computers are

          4  essential for the children's education, and I think

          5  it is the only way we can compete in the 21st

          6  century internationally.  But, I am curious about

          7  the question of calculators.  It has always bothered

          8  me, and I guess since you are here, you are on in

          9  trying to answer the question for me.

         10                 What age and what grade do we start

         11  children using calculators?

         12                 MS. TAN:  Actually, that may be more

         13  of an instructional- Jason Henry purchases the

         14  calculators, so maybe he can answer.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  I mean, it is

         16  technology, right?

         17                 MS. TAN:  Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Thank you, I

         19  appreciate your testimony today.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  We have also

         21  been joined by Council Member Dan Garodnick from

         22  Manhattan, and I know Jessica Lappin is going back

         23  and forth.

         24                 MR. HENRY:  Good afternoon, my name

         25  is Jason Henry.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  You did not

          3  think you would have to do anything here today, did

          4  you?

          5                 MR. HENRY:  I am the Chief

          6  Administrator for Regional and School- based

          7  Procurement within the Department of Ed.  My

          8  responsibilities include, in addition to IT

          9  procurement system- wide, also all of the contracts

         10  for supplies and materials system- wide.

         11                 So specifically to the calculator

         12  contract, or SPEND, we have a large contract with a

         13  single sole provider that has been strategically

         14  sourced, if you will, to accommodate the volume of

         15  our SPEND.

         16                 For the past three years through the

         17  Chancellor's Core Curriculum Program, we have

         18  deployed a tremendous number of Texas Instruments

         19  calculators to grades six, seven, eight and ninth

         20  grade, that are aligned to the particular math

         21  program associated with that grade level.  Off the

         22  top of my head, I could not tell you what the

         23  numbers are in terms of total units or total SPEND.

         24  I would be happy to pass those along to you. But the

         25  Department in the past four years has experienced
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          2  growth and has put dollars behind the purchase of

          3  calculators that is probably unprecedented in the

          4  Department's history.  These range from graphing

          5  calculators on the ninth grade level, to more of a

          6  simple, scientific or four- function calculator on

          7  the sixth and seventh grade level.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  And when is the

          9  youngest grade level that they are able to use a

         10  calculator in school for the policy?

         11                 MR. HENRY:  In terms of what is

         12  supported with the Chancellor's core curriculum, it

         13  is sixth grade.  However, there are many other means

         14  or avenues for schools to buy calculators for grades

         15  K through five.  It is just that the sixth through

         16  ninth is part of core curriculum, Chancellor's core

         17  curriculum, we support those centrally.  And any

         18  SPEND on calculator's, grades K through five, would

         19  be done by the individual school, using a contact

         20  say from Staples or a general school supply vendor.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  You probably

         22  want me to finish, right?  I am sorry.

         23                 I just- I guess the only last

         24  question I have is what is a kindergarten kid doing

         25  using a calculator?  I mean, why, I am just curious,
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          2  if you know the policy behind that.  You might not,

          3  I do not want to--.

          4                 MR. HENRY:  I mean, I honestly do not

          5  know how many calculators I bought on a kindergarten

          6  level.  All I can tell you from a procurement point

          7  of view, the opportunity is there.

          8                 So, I would assume that it would be

          9  the decision on the individual school level to make

         10  their determination when is the appropriate age or

         11  grade level for the utilization of the devise.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Thank you.

         13                 If I can, I want to thank you for

         14  your testimony, and I apologize.  I know you are not

         15  the policy person.  So I do apologize.

         16                 MR. HENRY:  Not a problem.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Two things,

         18  Madam and Mister Chair.

         19                 First, I think it is important to

         20  note that we do buy a third of the computers in the

         21  City of New York.  I think that that is a great

         22  tribute to the council members who may get, as part

         23  of their individual, personal, allocations from

         24  their capital budget.

         25                 I want to thank all of you for your
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          2  testimony, and second, I would love an oversight

          3  hearing on how young we start technology at.  I am

          4  very worried that we sometimes produce kids that

          5  understand that 10 X 12 is- but, may not know why,

          6  and I am worried that calculators sometimes

          7  interfere with that.

          8                 So, I would love for you to consider

          9  an oversight hearing on that.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 MR. KROOT:  Council Member Katz, let

         12  me just offer.  If you are aware of classrooms that

         13  do not have Internet connectivity, you can please

         14  let me know, and I will be very glad to follow up.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

         16  much.

         17                 We have been joined by Council Member

         18  Andy Lanza from the great borough of Staten Island.

         19                 We are now having questions from

         20  Council Member Vallone, and Felder, and Vacca.

         21                 Council Member Vallone.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Thank you

         23  very much.

         24                 I just want to follow up on that

         25  important line of questioning from Council Member
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          2  Katz.

          3                 I want to second the call for a

          4  hearing on calculators because after I ramble for a

          5  moment, anyone who wants to try to answer this, you

          6  may have to call up ten more people on this one, but

          7  we just had a cell phone hearing, Robert Jackson and

          8  I, and had to sit and listen to really I thought

          9  silly arguments about why kids should not have cell

         10  phones on the way to and from school, and the fact

         11  that cell phones are used to cheat.  We all know

         12  that, and we know that it is very simple to not- to

         13  prevent cell phones from being used by cheaters, do

         14  not allow them on the person, do not allow them

         15  turned on very simple, take them away if they do,

         16  make a parent come in and get them.  The second

         17  time, donate them to charity.  Problem solved.     But

         18  the cheating argument, we thought was completely

         19  silly to begin with but if you are going to use a

         20  cheating argument to stop something that is so

         21  essential a public safety tool as phones, what the

         22  heck are calculators doing in classrooms?  These

         23  calculators now- a- days are ones that can access

         24  the Internet, they can store notes, there is almost

         25  no way that when a child brings a calculator- I do
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          2  not know what kind of calculators you guys are

          3  handing out, and hopefully they do not have these

          4  capabilities, and if they do, again, that is why we

          5  should be looking into it, but I have read story

          6  after story and I have two kids in school, and by

          7  the way, our sixth grade daughters have never seen a

          8  calculator and Council Member Vacca is going to

          9  follow up on that, in school.  But we read story

         10  after story, and a piece of evidence after evidence

         11  about cheating with calculators.

         12                 So, why would we worry about phones

         13  being used for cheating but allow calculators, which

         14  in this day and age can be used to do just about

         15  anything in our classrooms?

         16                 Does anyone want to give that a shot,

         17  or is this for the next hearing we are going to

         18  have?

         19                 MR. HENRY:  Let me share with you

         20  from a high level point of view, and I cannot speak

         21  to the educational value but for the tens of

         22  thousands of units we have deployed for core

         23  curriculum, as well as most, if not all, of the

         24  models available through the general array of

         25  contracts we have in place for schools to utilize,
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          2  they do not have Internet connectivity as a function

          3  of them.  Yes, some of the more powerful, especially

          4  the graphing calculators have a pretty sizeable

          5  memory capacity to them simply because of the

          6  functions that they need to perform. So, in some

          7  case you are right in that they do have a tremendous

          8  capacity to store information.

          9                 As to the reason why schools need

         10  calculators, it is interesting to note that many of

         11  the math programs out there from most of the large

         12  publishers, McGraw- Hill, Houghton- Mifflin, et

         13  cetera, et cetera, actually have embedded within the

         14  curriculum, within the textbook, the utilization of

         15  calculators, specific lesson plans, even to the

         16  point of being so specific as to dictate what

         17  specific calculator model you are supposed to use.

         18                 In addition, in just working

         19  collaboratively with our director of math and

         20  figuring out what units we need to deploy, the State

         21  Regents, many of the exams, are now actually

         22  starting to require the utilization of a calculator

         23  during the exam.  So, I know that has been part of

         24  the focus or the catalyst for the deployment of

         25  these devices.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Okay, I am

          3  not anti calculator per se, it is the cheating

          4  aspects of them.  If you are telling me that they

          5  are necessary, and they are handed out by the

          6  Department of Education, and there is no capacity to

          7  use these to cheat, then I am fine with that.  Are

          8  you allowing children to use their own calculators

          9  in any of our public schools?

         10                 MR. HENRY:  I am not aware of any

         11  central policy that would influence or dictate that

         12  you could not use a personal calculator.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Okay,

         14  absolutely absurd, and we should be having a hearing

         15  on this because they are going to use that rational

         16  to stop cell phones, which have a public safety use.

         17    To allow a child to bring a child to bring a

         18  calculator into the school is ridiculous.

         19                 I know it is not your purview at all.

         20    I thank you for giving me that information, and I

         21  apologize for hitting you with that.

         22                 MR. HENRY:  Sure.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  But I do

         24  have a computer question very quickly.

         25                 You mentioned the disparity, I think
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          2  Ms. Tan you did, with disparity regarding the

          3  allocation of resources, computer resources, it is

          4  interesting that the individual schools are tasked

          5  with getting grants for computers, or getting their

          6  council members to buy computers, and that is the

          7  policy which determines what schools have computers

          8  and what do not.

          9                 Do we think this is the best way to

         10  determine where our computers are, just a haphazard

         11  approach like that?

         12                 MR. KROOT:  Well, I think the most

         13  important thing that I would like to say to that is

         14  that one of our key initiatives going forward into

         15  the next school year is the Empowerment Schools

         16  Initiative, the determination is that principals, as

         17  the chief instructional officers of their schools,

         18  should be empowered working with their teachers to

         19  make the decisions on what the best tools are for

         20  instructional purposes. So, what we really want to

         21  do as an organization, from a technology

         22  perspective, on both the technology support side and

         23  the instructional technology side is to make it

         24  possible, to make the infrastructure possible, to

         25  provide the professional development, so it is
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          2  possible for schools to use those tools.           But

          3  the ultimate determination in most instances, I

          4  would say, belongs with the instructional leaders

          5  for those schools.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  I know that

          7  is the policy of this administration, and I do not

          8  disagree with it giving more power at the ground

          9  level, and I happen to take the position where that

         10  is the best way or not the best way- it is

         11  interesting that that is how computers are allotted,

         12  and I am sure it is something we are looking into.

         13  I know I pay for them in my own schools but I am

         14  well over my time.

         15                 Thank you all for your testimony.

         16                 Thank you, Chair.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

         18  much.

         19                 Council Member Felder.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Thank you

         21  very much.

         22                 I just want to follow up on that.  I

         23  do not think I heard this question answered.

         24                 Do you know how many public schools

         25  have as many computers as they need, or what
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          2  percentage of the computers needed in public schools

          3  are there at this time?

          4                 MS. TAN:  I do not have a direct

          5  answer to that, I mean, we certainly can get the

          6  count per schools.  Again speaking to what Irwin

          7  said, we basically, that is up to the principal of

          8  the school in terms of the need of the school, and

          9  at that point some of the schools actually are

         10  saturated at one- to- one and some are not.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Well, this is

         12  I think, first of all, thank you for all of the work

         13  you do before I start grilling you.

         14                 I just want to tell you it is not an

         15  acceptable answer to me.  I do not need the answer

         16  now, but I would think that my colleagues would like

         17  to know in their district what percentage of the

         18  computers, whatever is decided per school do they

         19  have?

         20                 So, that is question number one, and

         21  you do not have to tell me now.  But, I would ask

         22  the Chair, I would like to know that, especially

         23  since you are saying that the requests are more

         24  school- based, which is good, and I trust all the

         25  principals in my district, but I would like to know
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          2  whether they have enough, they do not have enough,

          3  or whatever else.

          4                 Let me say, despite trying to pat

          5  myself and my colleagues on the back for funding

          6  public schools in our districts with computers, I am

          7  not happy.  I do not think that the Council should

          8  spend its money funding public schools for computers

          9  that the administration or the Department of

         10  Education are being provided.

         11                 I, believe it or not, it was hard for

         12  me because I am still somewhat learning disabled.

         13  It is hard for me to listen to testimony, especially

         14  long, detailed testimony but I tried my best, and

         15  you are doing wonderful things, especially the

         16  things that I heard.

         17                 But, what is the story with the

         18  computers?  Why are we spending money on computers?

         19  I do not think- if they came along and they said

         20  that they would like the Council to put in $50

         21  million for additional police officers, Councilman

         22  Vallone, Jr. would say, "we are not paying for

         23  additional police officers."  Okay, so Councilman

         24  Vallone will pay for 50,000 additional police

         25  officers from his discretionary money, but that is
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          2  something the City should provide.  You do not have

          3  to answer that, but I am just saying to you is that

          4  I think that with all the great things that you are

          5  doing, one of the most elementary things, maybe if

          6  you need the money, you will take away all the

          7  calculators and you will buy some more computers.

          8  But, you are talking about all this great stuff when

          9  they do not even have the tools to deal with- and

         10  you are depending on our, what should I say, our

         11  discretion to be able to fund computers in the

         12  school, and I can say that because every one of the

         13  public schools in my district, and I know that is

         14  true in other districts, got more than $50,000 in

         15  computers out of my, I should say, out of the

         16  taxpayers pockets, and my pork barrel, right?  That

         17  is not the way it should be.

         18                 Now, the reason I am saying that is

         19  that this- I am setting you up now, okay, is that

         20  the Chancellor was here a little while ago, a few

         21  weeks ago, and there was a discussion about non-

         22  public schools, having said that I funded $50,000 in

         23  every public school, so despite the fact that I have

         24  a yalmalka and a beard, I would like to talk about

         25  non- public schools for a minute.  They do not get
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          2  computers, period.  Last year for the first time in

          3  history, the City Council allocated $2.5 million to

          4  the Department of Education, and through a lottery,

          5  a number of schools, thank God, got computers.

          6                 Now, I ask you a series of questions.

          7    Do you believe that non- public schools, just like

          8  text books that you provide, do you provide

          9  textbooks?  Do you provide textbooks, or do you want

         10  to call somebody else up?  Do you provide text

         11  books.

         12                 MR. HENRY:  I can say about the text

         13  book piece is that the State of New York provides a

         14  specific grant, Categorical Grant, for the purchase

         15  of text books, and in statutory language they are

         16  entitled to basically a per capita share of that

         17  overall grant that comes to the City Department of

         18  Education.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Excellent,

         20  does the state grant you money for computers?

         21                 MR. HENRY:  To the best of my

         22  knowledge, there is a small hardware grant,

         23  Categorical Grant, for the purchase of hardware.  I

         24  honestly, it has been about a year and a half, two

         25  years since I have been in the business to follow
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          2  statutory language for the Department.  I believe it

          3  still exists.  It has probably been frozen at the

          4  same level for the past four or five years, and I

          5  have no idea what the funding level is.  I think the

          6  last I knew, it was around $8.5 to $10 million.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  But you do

          8  believe that you have an obligation to provide text

          9  books to non- public schools, whether you get the

         10  money from the State or not.

         11                 Is that true or not?

         12                 MR. HENRY:  What I will tell you from

         13  where I sit, and the responsibilities that are given

         14  to me, my job is to make sure that if we have to

         15  have a certain distribution of funds and provide

         16  those materials, that we have the mechanics and the

         17  logistics in place to make sure that happens, and

         18  happens well, and happens quickly.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Yes, I do not

         20  get that. That was very fancy.

         21                 Is there anyone at the table that can

         22  answer my question?  It is a yes or no question.  Do

         23  you believe that the Department of Education of New

         24  York City has an obligation to provide text books

         25  for children throughout the City, whether they be in
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          2  public or non- public schools?  It is a yes or no

          3  answer.

          4                 MR. FISCHER:  I cannot answer the

          5  text book issue but I can tell you that through the

          6  E2- T2 Grants, the technology grants for Title IID,

          7  that a non- public allocation is required for that

          8  grant.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Excellent,

         10  that was the answer I want.

         11                 So, even though it was not yes or no,

         12  I thank you.

         13                 MR. FISCHER:  You are welcome.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Now, I am

         15  just, I do not want to belabor the point, but I do

         16  want to ask you to go back and please do the

         17  research because I do not think that the non public

         18  schools, any of them, should be treated any

         19  differently than public schools when it comes to the

         20  allocation of computers because you talked about

         21  motivation, you talked about self- esteem, you

         22  talked about public speaking.  I was a discipline

         23  problem in school.  I know you do not believe it,

         24  but I was and if maybe I had some of the tools, the

         25  exciting tools that you are using everywhere else,
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          2  maybe I would not be here, and Lanza would be able

          3  to do what he has to do.  But we want to get this

          4  stuff for everybody.

          5                 So, I am asking you to go back.  I

          6  would like in writing, if I could ask the Chair,

          7  Chair Brewer, if we can get in writing what the plan

          8  is in terms of getting computers allocated

          9  everywhere.  I would appreciate that very much.

         10                      Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you, we

         12  will do that, go ahead.

         13                 MR. KROOT:  Let me mention, Council

         14  Member Felder that we do have an inventory for all

         15  of our public schools of how many computers there

         16  are in each school, and we will make that available.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  I do not want

         18  to know how many there are in the schools because

         19  that makes you look good. I do not mind you looking

         20  good, but I want to know what percentage in each

         21  school of the computers that they need do they have.

         22    That is what I would like.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  We will get that

         25  also.
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          2                 Thank you very much.

          3                 Council Member Vacca.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  Yes, I first

          5  would like to echo my colleagues remarks regarding

          6  the private schools in making sure that we try to

          7  service them.  I have been in some private schools

          8  and the computers are outdated, and they are few and

          9  far between, and I think that they deserve

         10  consideration and action.

         11                 Several things I wanted to speak

         12  about.  I am concerned about sixth grade, seventh

         13  grade and eighth grade. Many of our children are

         14  falling between the cracks.  Reading and math scores

         15  in grade a four and grade eight really do not often

         16  have a relationship.  In the same school you see

         17  such a decline. I first want to state for the record

         18  my colleague Councilman Vallone mentioned it, his

         19  daughter and my daughter are in different public

         20  schools in grade six in public school, and my

         21  daughter never saw this calculator.  So, I do not

         22  know if every sixth grade student has it but I know

         23  I did not see it.

         24                 I want to know how we use technology

         25  to assist intermediate schools?  Grade six is where
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          2  we start impact mathematics, much of the impact

          3  mathematics deals with probability, and I would like

          4  to know how are we using technology to assist

          5  students in grades six, seven, eight who may be

          6  having math difficulties?  What is the program?  How

          7  does what you do relate to the New York State

          8  Standards that students have to meet to pass their

          9  critical exams and keep up with the curriculum?

         10                 MR. FISCHER:  Yes, that is primarily

         11  the work of the Office of Instruction and

         12  Technology.  We have began working in 22 schools to

         13  set a model for integrating technology with a core

         14  curriculums of math, science, English Language Arts.

         15    So what happens is, a group of professionals in

         16  the area of mathematics and technology come together

         17  to write lesson plans that incorporate the use of

         18  technology to increase a students' understanding of

         19  probability or numerization or any of the other

         20  topics in math, and so, teachers receive upwards of

         21  85 hours of professional development to learn how to

         22  do this work.  It is happening in every region.  We

         23  are expanding the professional development

         24  opportunities to more teachers in the region so that

         25  they know how to do this work.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  How can we use

          3  technology to improve pupil performance in math

          4  starting in grade six?

          5                 How do you see us using technology?

          6                 MR. FISCHER:  Well, one of the key

          7  pieces of software that we use for mathematics is a

          8  geometry sketchpad, which has an opportunity to take

          9  very abstract ideas and make them very concrete by

         10  going through, if you talk about probability, going

         11  through a series of probability scenarios so that

         12  students walk away with a better understanding about

         13  the ratio between the number of beans that are in a

         14  particular bag or whatever probability questions

         15  that they may have.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  So I as a

         17  parent or as a city council member, I should rest

         18  assured that the curriculum for technology in grades

         19  six, seven, eight, matches the New York State

         20  Standards for math?

         21                 MR. FISCHER:  Absolutely, absolutely.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  All right,

         23  next thing.

         24                 I wanted to talk about the model we

         25  are using for technology in our schools.  The model
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          2  used to be a lamb, now we are going toward wireless

          3  stations, and we are going to computers in

          4  classrooms.  Am I right in what I am saying?

          5                 MR. FISCHER:  That is absolutely

          6  correct.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  All right, are

          8  we dismantling existing computers labs?

          9                 MR. FISCHER:  We are phasing them out

         10  if you will. And so, when labs become obsolete,

         11  instead of dedicating the space for just technology,

         12  using mobile technology allows you to use a space in

         13  multiple ways, and so, providing a laptop scenario

         14  in a classroom allows the technology to be used when

         15  necessary, but also put away so that space could be

         16  used for other things. Taking the technology from

         17  class to class begins to have a inter disciplinary

         18  approach to learning so that when students begin

         19  something in a math class, that they can continue in

         20  partnership in a science, English Language Arts.  In

         21  a lab setting you just do not get that.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  Not all

         23  students are being given laptops to take home.  Many

         24  of them will have them in trays in the school, and

         25  then you return them to the tray.
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          2                 MR. FISCHER:  Computer carts, that is

          3  correct.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  Computers

          5  carts, okay, I understand.

          6                 All right, so the model we are going

          7  with now are, I guess, for the early grades you want

          8  computers in the classrooms, and perhaps, after

          9  grade four, you want use of the mobile computer

         10  trays?

         11                 MR. FISCHER:  We have not made a

         12  distinction of whether it starts at grade four or

         13  not, but in most of our early childhood classrooms,

         14  you will find computers and learning centers that

         15  support students learning how to read and write.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  Do you find a

         17  challenge--?

         18                 MR. FISCHER:  It is usually about

         19  four or so.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  It is about

         21  four.

         22                 MR. FISCHER:  Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  Do you find a

         24  challenge in so- much as providing technology in a K

         25  to Eight school, versus and intermediate school?  Is
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          2  there a challenge, perhaps, you do not have as many

          3  children in grades six, seven, eight, and in a K to

          4  Eight school as you would in an intermediate school?

          5    My question is getting to outcomes.

          6                 MR. FISCHER:  Yes, the challenge is

          7  not necessarily in the size of the school or the

          8  grade designation from a K to Eight.  The challenge

          9  is to make sure that we build instructional leaders

         10  who understand how to employ effective use of

         11  technology.  The challenge is to make sure that we

         12  provide professional development to principals so

         13  that they can make a determination of where

         14  technology should go to fit their students.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  Okay, quickly

         16  I wanted to go into computer repair.  Before I came

         17  to the council, I was chair of a school leadership

         18  team.  Often, when computers were broken, it took

         19  weeks for someone to come from, I guess, your

         20  office.  Would it be your office that repairs- your

         21  office- okay.  We would be concerned, you know

         22  sometimes a computer is vandalized, that is the

         23  reality.  Sometimes a system is down, and often,

         24  there was an inordinate amount of time for us to get

         25  a person to come out.  This was perhaps a year and a
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          2  half or two ago, is there an improvement on that

          3  time period that it takes people to come when a

          4  school has a repair need?

          5                 MR. KROOT:  Yes, there is a definite

          6  improvement, systemwide, in that.  Council Member

          7  Brewer made reference earlier to an average number

          8  of days to repair computers.

          9                 We actually do not have a comparable

         10  number now because we have embarked, about three

         11  years ago now, on a managed services contract so

         12  that we have external vendors who are providing

         13  services, repair services, for us, and we have

         14  varying service level agreements with those external

         15  vendors.

         16                 If a computer is in warranty, if it

         17  is three years old or less, those service level

         18  agreements call for an initial repair call to be

         19  made once there is a telephone call from the school

         20  into our help desk, there is a service visit within

         21  a day, and if there needs to be a repair that

         22  includes a re- imaging of the device, if there is a

         23  major repair to the device, we have a two day

         24  service level agreement.

         25                 We are running consistently at 99

                                                            62

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT AND EDUCATION

          2  percent of our service calls- are addressed in this

          3  service level agreement time periods.  So, one day

          4  for visits, two day for repairs.

          5                 It does not mean that there are not

          6  some instances, anecdotal instances, where it may

          7  take a good deal longer.  The same thing can happen

          8  with your own computer at home, but by and large, we

          9  are finding that as soon as issues are reported for

         10  computers, we are getting repair teams out there.

         11                 For out- of- warranty computers,

         12  because there are still a number of old computers in

         13  schools, the service level agreements call for two-

         14  day and five- day service, along the same lines as

         15  the one and two- day service, and there too, we are

         16  running each month 95 percent or more, meeting the

         17  service level agreement.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  Oh okay, it

         19  has gotten better.

         20                 MR. KROOT:  Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  I want to

         22  touch, for a minute as a parent, on parents knowing

         23  how to use technology. Many parents do not know how

         24  to use technology.  Many of our children are with

         25  grandparents, who do not know how to use technology.
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          2

          3                 What percentage of households in New

          4  York City do we estimate or does your office

          5  estimate do not have access to technology in the

          6  home because of economic reasons?  Whatever reasons?

          7    What percentage of parents are we dealing with?

          8                 MR. KROOT:  I am going to give you an

          9  answer and it is the working hypothesis that we

         10  have, and please understand that this is not based

         11  on a scientific survey.  It is something less than

         12  50 percent of households now.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  Less than 50

         14  percent.

         15                 MR. KROOT:  Do not have, this is more

         16  than 50 percent of households have access to

         17  technology.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  But I submit

         19  to you, as I am sure you will agree, 48 percent or

         20  45 percent is a very high number of people who do

         21  not have technology.

         22                 How are we helping parents know-

         23  parents have to have access to computers, if it is

         24  not in the home and we have to bring them into the

         25  schools, I am thinking of several reasons. First, to
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          2  help their children they have to have basic

          3  knowledge. Number two, the system has- the school

          4  system enacted the Princeton Review.  The Princeton

          5  Review is a method, whereby, students are tested

          6  throughout the year, they then get results of these

          7  practice tests, they can go on- line and see where

          8  they did wrong, and they get practice exercises to

          9  improve where they were lacking.  Parents are an

         10  integral part of going onto the Princeton Review

         11  website and finding out their students progress, and

         12  if we have such a large amount of parents without

         13  computer access, there has got to be a parental

         14  component.

         15                 What are we doing about parental,

         16  such a parental component piece?

         17                 MR. FISCHER:  There are several

         18  schools within the City, and I cannot give you a

         19  number, that include open access for parents either

         20  during the beginning of the school day or after the

         21  school day.

         22                 Working with the Office of Parent

         23  Engagement, we supply opportunities for parents, at

         24  least, to get to know the iTeach- iLearn Project.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  I have to tell
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          2  you that I think with a large number like that, we

          3  have to mandate that schools have open access

          4  periods.  I think that there has to be set days

          5  where there is open access to computers for parents

          6  to come into the buildings and get help.  There has

          7  to be days, not only for parent education, but to

          8  really utilize this Princeton Review Method.  We

          9  have to have mandated days where parents are

         10  welcomed into the schools.  We are talking of

         11  500,000 parents who do not have computer access in

         12  New York City.  That is a large number, and I am

         13  concerned that they are not going to be able to find

         14  out where their children are going wrong throughout

         15  the term, which will culminate in their child not

         16  doing well on standardized exams, then they are not

         17  going to be able to give their children the homework

         18  help that they need.  We have to have mandated days

         19  for schools to get parents in.  You cannot mandate a

         20  parent come, but there has to be mandate days for

         21  open access.

         22                 What can we do about that?

         23                 I know you seem to like the idea, but

         24  nobody wants to- I want a commitment but--.

         25                 MR. KROOT:  We will bring that
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          2  suggestion back with us.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  I would like

          4  you to bring that suggestion back, and it is

          5  something, Chair Brewer, that I want to pursue

          6  through this Committee, and on the Education

          7  Committee.

          8                 We are letting a lot of kids go

          9  through the cracks if we do not have something like

         10  that, fall through the cracks. You have parents

         11  today who are working two jobs to survive, and if we

         12  do not give them the help that they need, their kids

         13  will fall further and further behind, and I include

         14  grandparents because they are often the main

         15  provider.

         16                 I was going to say to get parental

         17  involvement through some type of a distance learning

         18  component, but I know I am talking about people who

         19  have the Internet.

         20                 Is there a distance learning

         21  component that parents can access from their homes?

         22  I admit to you as a parent of a sixth grader, I do

         23  not always know my daughters math.  I need to brush

         24  up, and the math, of course, is different from when

         25  I went to school.
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          2                 So, is there a computer website or is

          3  there information that we can give parents that they

          4  could go to to help us help our kids especially

          5  during the intermediate and high school grades?

          6                 MR. KROOT:  For those folks who have

          7  access to technology at home or in the library or

          8  some other site, we have on the Department of

          9  Education's website web pages that are specifically

         10  designed for parents, and for students, that provide

         11  homework help, that provide links to curriculum

         12  materials, and to explanatory materials.  The New

         13  York Public Library is one of the organizations that

         14  makes that kind of information available.          So

         15  if you go to our website, you will see that there

         16  are a lot of links that you may find helpful.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  That has to

         18  gotten out to people.  I know about NYC.gov,

         19  Department of Ed link, I know. But many parents do

         20  not.  We have to get that information out in several

         21  languages.  It has got to be distributed early in

         22  September, up front, and I think that should be one

         23  of the notices which parents are asked to sign that

         24  they receive.  So many of us get so many notices,

         25  and it is great, but many
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          2  parents- you know, I would like that to be signed

          3  for.

          4                 My last statement is again, to put on

          5  my hat as a council member for a minute.  I would

          6  like from DOE an assessment of computer needs in my

          7  council district.  What are the computer needs,

          8  school by school?  What are your plans, and by

          9  knowing what the needs are, and knowing what your

         10  plans are, I can then make an assessment of what I

         11  can do to supplement or supplant.            So, I

         12  need to know beyond the five- year capital plan.

         13  The five- year capital plan is not always all

         14  inclusive.

         15                 I would like a breakdown in my

         16  council district, and I think all my colleagues

         17  would like what is in place, what is needed in the

         18  future, and what you plan to do, and what we can,

         19  you know, and then from that, we will pick up what

         20  we can do.  Okay?

         21                 I thank you, Madam Chair.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 We have been joined by Council Member

         25  Oliver Koppell from the Bronx.
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          2                 I just have a few questions.  One of

          3  them, the guidelines for teachers on how to use

          4  technology in each curriculum area, just wanted to

          5  know how you go about that on line resources, some

          6  of it comes through PD, but are there such

          7  guidelines for teachers because this is a new world

          8  in terms of using the technology?

          9                 MR. FISCHER:  Sure, we pretty much

         10  follow the Estie Standards (phonetic) for

         11  integrating technology, and as

         12  a department, we have brought together a core

         13  curriculum, teachers, along with technology folks to

         14  come up with the appropriate uses and technology in

         15  the classroom and posted those to the iTeach- iLearn

         16  websites, at least for grades sixth, seventh and

         17  eighth as we continue to work with other grades.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay, and has

         19  not there been a cut to the IID money, is that going

         20  to impact this roll out?

         21                 MR. FISCHER:  Yes, this has been a

         22  suspected cut, and we welcome the Council to assist

         23  us in bringing some attention to that.

         24                 We spend a significant amount of

         25  money on professional development, and the
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          2  allocation in most of the regions have been cut

          3  nearly 50 percent.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay, is there-

          5  obviously one of the issues I mentioned and feel

          6  very strongly about as you do, is professional

          7  development and maintenance.

          8                 So, is there a plan to augment the

          9  Dell contract because you mentioned, obviously, much

         10  more of a roll out and, obviously, with a roll out

         11  comes maintenance.

         12                 So, I was just wondering how are you

         13  augmenting the Dell Contract?  You talked about it a

         14  little bit but I wanted some specifics.

         15                 MR. FISCHER:  Well, we are changing

         16  the service level agreement that is offered in

         17  middle school as part of the iTeach- iLearn project.

         18

         19                 What we have attempted to do is bake

         20  in as much support and services in the buy, the

         21  computer buy.  In addition to that, we are offering

         22  support not only from vendors but teachers, excuse

         23  me, schools that are required to be part of the

         24  iTeach- iLearn project have to have a depot manager

         25  that is responsible for just in time, swap out and
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          2  repair.  And then lastly, trying to leverage the

          3  expertise that exists in our students in putting

          4  them as part of iSquad and assisting with the MOUSE

          5  organization for technical support.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay I mean that

          7  is at least part of it.  It is a big problem.

          8                 The other question I have is,

          9  obviously, when you have thought along those lines,

         10  what I would call savvy students and a savvy

         11  teacher, and they have a room full of laptops and

         12  they are using them, there are bad ones issued, I

         13  know you have come across them.

         14                 So, I am just wondering how you are

         15  dealing with this new needs of the technology in

         16  terms of the infrastructure? It is not just a

         17  maintenance issue, it is an infrastructure issue.

         18  Obviously we are having it in the one- to- one

         19  intent, so I am concerned about that as the roll out

         20  takes place.

         21                 MR. KROOT:  Yes, the primary

         22  infrastructure issue that we are encountering right

         23  now, is actually within the school building,

         24  particularly for those schools where wireless access

         25  points were established or installed three years
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          2  ago, four years ago, as in the early days of the

          3  project CONNECT Project.  Those wireless access

          4  points had the capacity to support, fully support,

          5  high speed access for three, or four or five

          6  computers in a classroom.  You put 30 computers in a

          7  classroom, and all of a sudden there is a great deal

          8  of contention for access to the wireless access

          9  point.

         10                 So, our primary issue is not making

         11  sure that we are able to get the signal into the

         12  school building, it is- once we are in the school

         13  building, making sure that the classrooms are

         14  appropriately outfitted, and so, we are working on a

         15  continuous basis to identify the schools with the

         16  largest numbers of computers in classrooms, and the

         17  greatest need.  We have to do a technical survey in

         18  those schools to make sure that we understand which

         19  classrooms are affected, and how they are affected.

         20                 In many instances, we have to work

         21  with the school to either, at the school level, or

         22  at the central love, buy additional equipment that

         23  will support the greater need for wireless access

         24  within the building.  And so, that is an ongoing

         25  project for the schools, and an area that we
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          2  recognize as one that is critical for us moving

          3  forward.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  We have been

          5  joined by Council Member Tish James, thank you very

          6  much council member, from Brooklyn.

          7                 The reason I ask that sort of follows

          8  up on what Council Member Vacca was saying, which is

          9  that he wants to know what the issues are so that

         10  they can be addressed.

         11                 So, you are addressing these issues

         12  in a- is it some kind of systemwide plan for

         13  expansion, how do you go about sort of figuring out

         14  what the problems are before they become a problem?

         15  You call Ling is what you do, go ahead.  That is

         16  what I do.

         17                 MS. TAN:  One of the ways that- I

         18  mean, there is monitoring tools that DIT monitors on

         19  that, and I know two of your schools that we have

         20  recently addressed with the issue, there is a

         21  process that IT folks are putting in place

         22  evaluating the usage.  So, monitoring the peak time

         23  and what the lot is in understanding the usage in

         24  the school.  The issues sometimes could be a teacher

         25  who happen to be downloading a lot of things that
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          2  one day, it is not consistent.  So at a broader

          3  parameter, what we are looking at is evaluating the

          4  use and upgrade the connectivity to the school to a

          5  higher capacity data circuit with the ATM.  So, that

          6  is an ongoing process and we evaluate the school,

          7  and it comes from both ends, either the school

          8  reporting the issue, we investigate, or through the

          9  IT bend just understanding from the technology's

         10  perspective where the bottleneck is.

         11                 So in light of that also, we have to

         12  be I guess cognizant in terms of the use.  If a

         13  bunch of kids are downloading music or movies, and

         14  tie it up, we do not necessarily want to upgrade the

         15  infrastructure to accommodate that, so that is why

         16  we have to work in conjunction between the IT folks

         17  and the teaching and learning to understand the true

         18  usage.  The one of the biggest bend is basically

         19  video, so the schools that are more advanced are

         20  using that technology would generally be reviewed

         21  and looked at in that scenario.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Well that sort

         23  of begs the question, is there a systemwide plan for

         24  expanding the use of technology, and then at the

         25  other end, what evaluation is being done of the
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          2  effectiveness of all the technology, and using for

          3  instruction.  But that is going to include the

          4  maintenance and the professional development, they

          5  all go as a package.

          6                 So, I mean I am concerned about what

          7  is the systemwide plan, and what are the plans for

          8  evaluation of how we are doing on all levels of

          9  usage of technology?

         10                 MR. FISCHER:  Yes, we are spending a

         11  significant amount of time and money looking at the

         12  effectiveness of the iTeach- iLearn because we

         13  believe that it will be a model for success in our

         14  middle school classrooms.

         15                 So, the outline of the four goals

         16  that we are primarily spending time evaluating, once

         17  we have some data to share, we will share with you.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, and

         19  that is being done by an outside consultant?

         20                 MR. FISCHER:  That is correct, the

         21  Box Center is providing the evaluation.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, and

         23  what about the notion of a systemwide plan for

         24  expanding technology?  Is there like a document, how

         25  is it being thought about?  I know you have an
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          2  advisory board, et cetera, but what is the plan?  I

          3  mean, how is it being thought about?

          4                 MR. KROOT:  Well particularly from

          5  the perspective of technology in the classrooms and

          6  appropriate use of technology in the classrooms,

          7  again, we have a little bit of attention here

          8  between the notion of wanting to support it from a

          9  central perspective, and wanting to be sure that

         10  what we are doing primarily is providing for the

         11  infrastructure needs so that schools can make their

         12  own choices of how they want to use technology.

         13                 So from the perspective of the

         14  technology support organization that I am

         15  responsible for, our focal point is really on making

         16  sure that we have the infrastructure in place, that

         17  we are dedicating as much as we possibly can in

         18  terms of resources to keeping that infrastructure up

         19  to par so that schools can add technology as it is

         20  required.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  One other

         22  question too, is just about the principals,

         23  obviously, there is a leadership academy, are they

         24  given training on how to administrate, and what I

         25  would call, a tech- rich environment?

                                                            77

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT AND EDUCATION

          2                 MR. KROOT:  Yes, technology is a

          3  constant component of the leadership academy's

          4  curriculum.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay.

          6                 Council Member James.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Good

          8  afternoon.

          9                 Are other schools in the City of New

         10  York wired?              MR. KROOT:  Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  They are all

         12  wired, okay.

         13                 I believe in 2004, DOE testified that

         14  there were about 176 computers in the system.  One

         15  computer to every six- 176,000- one to every six

         16  students.  Has that number changed?

         17                 MR. KROOT:  It has changed very

         18  significantly.  We are now, as a system, with a very

         19  sizable investment on the part of Reso. A funds from

         20  city council members purchasing more than 50,000

         21  devices per year, and our total count in schools as

         22  of the beginning of June, is about 330,000 devices.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  I represent

         24  Fort Greene Clinton Hill- Prospect Heights- Crown

         25  Heights and parts of Bedford Styvesant.
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          2                 Can I get a breakdown of the number

          3  of computers in my district?

          4                 MR. KROOT:  Absolutely.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  I represent

          6  13, 16 and part of 17.

          7                 MR. KROOT:  We have a full inventory

          8  of the computers in all schools, and we have already

          9  volunteered to Chairperson Brewer to make that

         10  available.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  And the level

         12  of training on the part of the teachers and the

         13  administration in each of these schools, do you

         14  provide training to the teachers?

         15                 MR. FISCHER:  We certainly do.  In

         16  fact, we started two years ago with tracking that

         17  training through on- line professional development,

         18  a registration and tracking system called ProTracks.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Can you tell

         20  me the extent of the training in my district?

         21                 MR. FISCHER:  We could give you a

         22  breakdown of that, yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Thank you.

         24                 It is also my understanding that in

         25  2004, DOE announced a wireless laptop program.
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          2  Where are we with that wireless laptop program in

          3  the City of New York, and specifically in my

          4  district?  I hate to be very parochial, but all

          5  politics are local.

          6                 MR. FISCHER:  Yes that is fine.  The

          7  iTeach- iLearn is in every region--.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Yes.

          9                 MR. FISCHER:-- throughout the City.

         10  There are two schools per region, and so for you,

         11  P.S. 266 and 35.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Neither of

         13  those are in my district.

         14                 MR. FISCHER:  266 Park Place middle

         15  school, not yours?  Sorry.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  No, not in

         17  mine.  That is okay.

         18                 MR. FISCHER:  It is region eight, so.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Okay, region

         20  eight is large.

         21                 MR. FISCHER:  District 13, my

         22  apologies.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  That is okay.

         24                 If you could get a breakdown, that

         25  would be greatly appreciated.
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          2                 MR. FISCHER:  Sure.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  And it is also

          4  my understanding that you were focusing on

          5  struggling schools, or schools that are on the SURR

          6  List, is that correct?

          7                 MR. FISCHER:  For our Title IID

          8  resources as part of that allocation, regions needed

          9  to pick search schools, schools that were in need of

         10  improvement for the iTeach- iLearned, the decision

         11  was made by the region.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  So okay, it is

         13  by the region, okay.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 MR. FISCHER:  You are welcome.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  We have been

         17  joined by Council Member John Liu from Queens, and a

         18  question from Council Member Koppell.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Madam Chair,

         20  I know you are good at collection of data and what I

         21  just would like to zero in on the answer that you

         22  gave to Council Member James, we are going to get an

         23  inventory of computers in each of the schools, in

         24  each of the districts?

         25                 MR. KROOT:  That is correct.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Because I

          3  think it would, learning especially that such a

          4  large percentage of the computers comes through our

          5  Reso. A allocations, which is fine, but it would be

          6  very useful to me, I know, and probably to all of

          7  our colleagues to know which schools have more and

          8  which schools have less because sometimes we

          9  allocate these computers on the basis of the

         10  noisiest, and that is not necessarily the neediest.

         11  So, it would be very useful for me, and it is maybe

         12  even late for this year, but it would be very useful

         13  for me to know every school in my district, know

         14  exactly what kind of computer equipment they have,

         15  capability they have, and then I can  make a

         16  judgement as to where I might direct the next

         17  tranche of computers.

         18                 So, the sooner we could get that the

         19  better.  Do you know how soon we could get that?

         20                 MR. KROOT:  We can probably have it

         21  to you as soon as tomorrow.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Really?

         23                 MR. KROOT:  Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Well that

         25  would be very useful, very, very useful.
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          2                 So, I am going to count on that, not

          3  tomorrow necessarily but let us say in the next few

          4  days because we are making some decisions actually

          5  it might impact some of the decisions we are making

          6  right now.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Right, we will

          8  do that, okay.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Thank you,

         10  Madam Chair.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you.

         12                 Council Member Liu.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Thank you, Madam

         14  Chair.

         15                 Excuse me for having to go back and

         16  forth between the two hearing rooms.

         17                 I want to thank you for being here

         18  today.

         19                 My quick question is, there has been

         20  a lot of talk over the last few years about laptop

         21  computers and wireless computers.

         22                 Are we now shifting gears into PDA's

         23  for students?

         24                 MR. KROOT:  There is some move in

         25  that direction but it is not a sizeable amount.  We
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          2  are primarily using hand- held devices at this point

          3  for very specific applications in the schools.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Yes, you

          5  testified about helping the early grades learn to

          6  read.

          7                 MR. KROOT:  Yes, but the handheld's

          8  that are used there, are used by the teachers, not

          9  by the students.  Using the hand- held helps the

         10  teacher to be able to track in the Reading First

         11  Program, how many words the child reads correctly,

         12  how many errors the child makes, where the errors

         13  are.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Does the

         15  Department have some kind of policy about the use of

         16  PDA's, whether they are considered constructive

         17  tools for education, or might they still be

         18  concerned, as cell phones happen to be, distractions

         19  from instruction?

         20                 MR. FISCHER:  The PDA's are in place

         21  today as Irwin spoke a little bit, and I talked

         22  about earlier as part of the Reading First Program,

         23  only puts PDA's in the hands of teachers so that

         24  they can evaluate.

         25                 The other program that utilizes PDA's
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          2  is FitnessGram, again, putting technology in the

          3  hands of teachers so that they can evaluate students

          4  fitness.  There is not a policy that I am aware of

          5  right now that talks about students having PDA's.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  So there is not

          7  a policy for, and there is not a policy against?

          8                 MR. FISCHER:  No, not that I am aware

          9  of.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  I am asking this

         11  because one of my principals asked for a grant that

         12  would equip all of their students and teachers with

         13  PDA devices, and so, I hope that I did not do the

         14  wrong thing because I think they are going to get

         15  the grant, and every one of the students and

         16  teachers in this school, which is of modest size,

         17  will be equipped with a PDA by the end of next year.

         18                 MR. FISCHER:  Yes let me also add

         19  that those two programs are centralized programs,

         20  Reading First and FitnessGram, there are grants that

         21  exist where schools could apply to get technology in

         22  the hands of students and teachers.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  So they are not

         24  frowned upon, they are just not supported centrally?

         25                 MR. FISCHER:  Ideally, when schools
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          2  respond to grants, they have to make certain that in

          3  their grant applications that they are making a

          4  correlation between the device and student

          5  achievement, and if they are capable of doing that,

          6  then they are able to utilize the devices and no,

          7  they are not frowned upon.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Okay, thank you

          9  very much.

         10                 MS. TAN:  I have a comment regarding

         11  the PDA.  I think from the financial perspective, it

         12  is a capital eligibility issue to buy certain

         13  devices that the financing from the comptroller

         14  where it would not be eligible, so it could be that

         15  was the issue, and for the PDA's on a Reso. A

         16  capital that may present something that we need to

         17  bring up with on the--.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  So, it is your

         19  understanding today that PDA's are not eligible for

         20  capital, even though they are not very far off in

         21  price range from a desktop computer?

         22                 MS. TAN:  I guess it is part of a

         23  system.  It depends on how, if they have a

         24  curriculum like FitnessGram or something that has a

         25  cohesive system, it is no different than buying
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          2  digital cameras, individuals, in that price range.

          3                 So, anything that is mobile, small in

          4  that sense is very difficult to qualify.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Okay, well thank

          6  you very much for that point of information.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Council Member

          8  Felder.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Yes just

         10  briefly, I just want to make it clear that my

         11  colleagues may have other information requirements

         12  about the inventories.  I myself do not really care

         13  how many computers there are in the school.

         14                 I again, want to make it clear that I

         15  want to know what percentage of the computers that

         16  the schools say they need, they have.  That is what

         17  I would like to have.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 MR. KROOT:  Understood, that we will

         20  not be able to have available tomorrow.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Council Member

         22  James.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Thank you,

         24  Madam Chair.

         25                 Just for a follow up.  In my district
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          2  there is overwhelming poverty, and there is

          3  overwhelming wealth, and they are side- by- side.

          4                 I was speaking to the Chancellor, not

          5  the Chancellor, Carmen Farina this morning about

          6  creating a children's zone, and particularly in

          7  those pockets where there is an incredible amount of

          8  poverty, creating a children's zone where P.S. 67,

          9  287, 313, they are all near public housing,

         10  Ingersoll, Whitman and Farragut and Downtown

         11  Brooklyn, there is a number of obsolete computers in

         12  these schools, two of these schools are about to be

         13  placed on the SURR List, though we are seeking to

         14  try to address that.

         15                 The question is whether or not these

         16  laptop computers, because it is my understanding

         17  that your are going to be focused on these

         18  underserved communities, whether or not you are

         19  going to be removing the obsolete computers and

         20  replacing them with these laptops, or how are you

         21  addressing the obsolete computers, and I am sorry

         22  but I guess I was not paying attention, I was

         23  focused on reading something else, how are we

         24  addressing the laptop computer with respect to this

         25  five- year capital plan in DOE?
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          2                 MR. FISCHER:  Obsolete equipment,

          3  well two things, P.S. 67 and 287 and the other that

          4  you mentioned, if they are a school in need as part

          5  of the Title IID, should it survive, we will target

          6  those schools for integrating technology to assist

          7  in the academic performance of those schools.  There

          8  will be resources given to those schools as part of

          9  that application. There is a procedure in place for

         10  disposing of obsolete equipment, and I know it is in

         11  place.

         12                 MR. KROOT:  We have a procedure in

         13  place for disposing of obsolete equipment.  We do

         14  not have a formal replacement policy, primarily

         15  because of the dollar demands that that would place

         16  on the Department of Education.

         17                 So, what we are doing instead and

         18  continuing to look for resources to be able to take

         19  other approaches is, we are continuing to support,

         20  to provide maintenance for computers for as long as

         21  schools are using those computers but clearly, after

         22  somewhere between three and five years, they become

         23  less and less useful even if they are still working.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Right, because

         25  someone came forth, a company in the district
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          2  seeking to donate some computers to one of the

          3  schools that I just mentioned, they were rejected

          4  because the computers were described as obsolete,

          5  and out of date, and so now my office is filled with

          6  20 useless computers.

          7                 MR. KROOT:  One of the things that we

          8  established some time ago, I am sorry if I

          9  interrupted, was a minimum set of standards for

         10  donations to schools because it becomes more

         11  difficult for schools, and more of a support issue,

         12  quite frankly, than it is worth to take computers

         13  that are more than a couple of years old.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  And lastly, if

         15  you can follow up whether or not those schools, and

         16  there are five schools in my "children's zone" that

         17  really are underserved, and really need a

         18  significant amount of resources and those schools

         19  are struggling, and most of the children come from

         20  public housing.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay, thank you.

         22                 Web portal, this is my last question,

         23  what is the status of it in terms of, I know it

         24  exists but in terms of your notion of what it is

         25  actually going to be able to accomplish.  I know
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          2  that it is a long- term building program.

          3                 MR. KROOT:  Yes and in fact, the

          4  development of web resources for families and

          5  parents and students is an ongoing initiative, and

          6  what we have done over the course of the past six to

          7  eight months is to take a look at all of what we are

          8  doing from the perspective of the accountability,

          9  the Chancellor's Accountability Initiative, because

         10  what we want to do is to be sure that as we are

         11  building tools, that those tools are supporting all

         12  of the kinds of accountability reporting that need

         13  to be made available to the public, to parents, to

         14  students, and so forth.

         15                 So, over the course of the past year

         16  and a half the pilot parent portal that has been

         17  made available, has been made available on the web,

         18  and also using some new technology made available

         19  through dial- up so that parents that do not have

         20  access to a computer can phone in and get,

         21  essentially, the same information that they would

         22  get by going to the portal on the Internet.  We have

         23  suspended development on the portal beyond where it

         24  is right now pending a better picture of what the

         25  accountability tools are going to look like, so that
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          2  we can then begin to move forward again along those

          3  directions.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Even I need a

          5  dictionary to keep up with all the new terms.

          6                 MR. KROOT:  Sorry about that.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Gosh, let us

          8  stop and I appreciate it.  I just want to say that

          9  you have to watch SCA a little bit because in one

         10  high school this week they took out all of the

         11  wireless boxes by mistake.  So, I did not want to

         12  mention this to you but you might want to check out,

         13  as SCA does renovation, they need to not take out

         14  all the eRate material. That would be great.

         15                 Thank you very much, and really, I

         16  appreciate what you are doing, but we all have a lot

         17  of work to do together.

         18                 Thank you very much.

         19                 MR. KROOT:  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Next is Carol

         21  Wacey, Executive Director of MOUSE, and she will

         22  tell you what MOUSE is, for those of you who do not

         23  know, Elizabeth Stock, President and Co- Founder of

         24  Computers for Youth, Torrance Robinson, Founder and

         25  President of eChalk, Inc.  I am also going to ask
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          2  Nancy Mazzella from the UFT to come up because I

          3  know she has a time concern, and we are going to

          4  need some extra chairs at the table.  We are going

          5  to ask also Michelle Pullaro, the Chief Operating

          6  Officer of Per Scholas, if Amanda Crowley is here

          7  from Eyebeam, she is the Executive Director, and I

          8  know Laura Allen, President of Vision Education

          9  Media might want to go at the end because I know she

         10  has a powerpoint.

         11                 Carol Wacey, why do not you begin?

         12                 MS. WACEY:  All right, and thank you

         13  very much Chair Brewer.  I appreciate having the

         14  opportunity to come here.

         15                 I am going to try and keep it really

         16  short.  I know many of you, and I know you have a

         17  lot left on the agenda.

         18                 I just first of all want to thank you

         19  for having this hearing, and I think we all learned

         20  a lot from the last panel, and I think we are

         21  looking forward to the leadership that the City

         22  Council continues to provide in partnership with the

         23  Department of Education.

         24                 I am circulating testimony and I am

         25  going to just hit on some of the highlights to get

                                                            93

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT AND EDUCATION

          2  through it pretty quickly.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you.

          4                 MS. STOCK:  MOUSE has brought

          5  together technological resources, instruction

          6  programs to public schools in all five boroughs of

          7  New York City since 1997.  We have been focused on

          8  giving underserved youth access to education and

          9  training to be successful in today's information

         10  age, and we are going to continue to do that.

         11                 The challenge is, and I think the

         12  reason we are all here today, is we still recognize

         13  there is a divide that exists between our higher

         14  performing and lower performing schools, and we

         15  think technology can be part of a comprehensive

         16  solution for all of our schools.

         17                 I just want to tell you a little bit

         18  about our program, and how we are trying to work

         19  with the Department of Education and through the

         20  support of the City Council, and we thank you for

         21  that.

         22                 We have three programs, one is MOUSE

         23  Squad where we actually train teams of students to

         24  provide the tech support in schools.  As Council

         25  Member Brewer mentioned, there has been a lot of
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          2  technology that has gone into schools, but one of

          3  the big issues is really keeping the technology up

          4  and running.  So, we actually train teams of

          5  students to provide ongoing support.  We are now in

          6  about 84 schools here in the City, supporting 90,000

          7  students, about 6,000 teachers and administrators.

          8                 I am happy to tell you through a

          9  Financial metrics program we did with Citigroup, we

         10  are saving the City about $1.2 million.  I should

         11  say, the kids are saving the City about $1.2

         12  million.

         13                 One of the things that I want to sort

         14  of emphasize here today is one area where I think

         15  the City Council could be particularly helpful is

         16  focusing on evaluation, really holding all of us

         17  accountable, along with the Department of Education

         18  to make sure that the results we are providing for

         19  our students are actually having the impact that we

         20  intend.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

         22  much.

         23                 MS. WACEY:  We actually are working

         24  in partnership with Fordham to do a third party

         25  evaluation of our program.  We just started getting
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          2  some results back from this past academic year, and

          3  a couple of things I just want to mention.

          4                 One is, 90 percent of our students

          5  say that they think the program helps them improve

          6  their academic skills, and that is reading, writing,

          7  math, all of the core curriculum subjects.  Ninety-

          8  nine percent of our teachers actually think it is

          9  really impacting student attendance, and we know if

         10  the kids are in school they are actually gong to

         11  perform better.  There is other data in here but I

         12  will leave that to read afterwards. Again, I think

         13  data is critically important to all the work that we

         14  do across the City.

         15                 The second program I want to mention

         16  is MOUSECORPS, the student leadership program where

         17  we actually work with high school students to have

         18  them take on projects across the City.  So, they are

         19  actually doing peer- to- peer mentoring with other

         20  students.  So you can imagine the empowerment that

         21  comes with that.  But, they are also taking on

         22  community service projects, setting up labs in other

         23  schools.  We had a school out in Queens, our MOUSE

         24  Squad of the Year from last year, Thomas Edison

         25  actually set up a lab at Martin Luther King in
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          2  Manhattan. They are great examples of students

          3  actually teaching teachers how to use technology.

          4  They ran courses over multiple days in terms of

          5  providing technology, again, very empowering for our

          6  students to be actually teaching their teacher.  One

          7  of the great things about technology is it can

          8  change the dynamic in the classroom.

          9                 The final program I want to mention

         10  is TechSource. TechSource is our research and

         11  evaluation program.  MOUSE has always been committed

         12  to making sure we understand the impact, we

         13  understand what is not working, and we actually

         14  improve our programs.  We worked in partnership with

         15  the New York City Department of Ed on a video- based

         16  survey to really understand attitudes towards

         17  technology.  By understanding attitudes teachers

         18  have, we know how we can better deploy technology

         19  throughout the City.  So, that survey data is now

         20  available.

         21                 The final thing I just want to

         22  mention, and on the last page of my testimony you

         23  will see a series of recommendations, and I think- I

         24  am hoping this is what comes out of the many

         25  conversations that we are having here today.  I do
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          2  not want to take credit for all these

          3  recommendations, in fact, Council Member Brewer, I

          4  turn to the report that came out of our last hearing

          5  to look at those recommendations.  I turned to

          6  another report, which came out of the CFE work that

          7  Council Member Jackson led, and there was actually a

          8  committee of technology.  I could turn to some of

          9  the recommendations that MOUSE has, I put them in

         10  one place, and I am just going to hit on the bullet

         11  points and you can see the details in the testimony.

         12                 We want to focus on leadership,

         13  really supporting our principals and teachers so

         14  they can make good decisions, so that if they are

         15  asking for PDA's they have the information upon

         16  which to know that PDA's are effective for their

         17  schools.

         18                 We want to focus on accountability,

         19  it is a big word these days, but it is an important

         20  one.

         21                 We want to look at best practices.

         22  There are a lot of great things happening across the

         23  City.  We want to learn from them.  We also want to

         24  look beyond the City to see what is happening, and

         25  see how we can learn from some examples that are
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          2  happening and really benefit from those.

          3                 Funding, I mentioned funding.  There

          4  has been a lot of talk about it today.  We talked

          5  about capital versus expense.  Computers and

          6  hardware should be an expense, they need to come

          7  back every- we need to roll computers in, we cannot

          8  think of it as a one- shot deal.  Every three years

          9  we need to upgrade and update, and take computers

         10  out of the system.  So I think it is just a new

         11  mindset for all of us to think about.

         12                 We need to think of our students as

         13  leaders in the classroom, and really a part of the

         14  solution for what can happen in the classroom

         15  because they are so technocologically savvy, and we

         16  have talked about that.  We can really benefit from

         17  their input in the process.

         18                 And finally, something I have

         19  mentioned already- evaluation.  We want to continue

         20  to really learn about what is working in the

         21  classroom, and how we can continue to improve our

         22  programs.

         23                 Thank you very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

         25  much, as always Carol Wacey.
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          2                 We have been joined by Council Member

          3  Yvette Clarke, thank you because I know you are in

          4  charge next door. So, we appreciate that you are

          5  here, and Council Member Yassky stopped in.

          6                 Mr. Robinson, are you next?  And can

          7  you summarize just like this fabulous, earlier,

          8  Carol Wacey?

          9                 MR. ROBINSON:  I will be as quick as

         10  possible.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay.

         12                 MR. ROBINSON:  First I just wanted to

         13  thank both committees for this opportunity, and for

         14  pulling together this hearing, and specifically the

         15  Honorable Chair Brewer and Jackson.

         16                 My name is Torrence Robinson, and I

         17  am the Founder and President of eChalk.  We are

         18  actually headquartered here in New York City.

         19                 EChalk is an on- line learning

         20  environment for K through 12 schools and districts.

         21  Our service replicates the safe and secure learning

         22  environment of the classroom and puts it on- line.

         23  By doing this, eChalk extends the learning window

         24  for students, gives teachers the tools they need to

         25  be more efficient, greatly improves the school- to-
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          2  home connection, empowers administrators to execute

          3  initiatives within their school and districts, and

          4  reconnects the community to their local school.

          5                 EChalk is entirely web- based.  Our

          6  service works on any connected computer or device,

          7  and does not require any software to be downloaded,

          8  installed, maintained or upgraded by the end user or

          9  the DOE.

         10                 Our ongoing success in the schools is

         11  achieved through our Client Service Division which

         12  assigns a project manager who oversees a team of

         13  professional developers and support personal to

         14  plan, implement and support our schools.

         15                 EChalk is actually a creation of the

         16  New York City Schools, and over the past years that

         17  we have been serving our schools, we have found a

         18  tremendous, surprising even, demand for our

         19  services.

         20                 Today, eChalk is the leading provider

         21  of on- line learning environments for K through 12

         22  schools and districts in the United States.  In New

         23  York City alone, we are up and running in over 200

         24  public schools, covering all ten regions as well as

         25  Region 75.
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          2                 In 2005 and 2006, eChalk will have

          3  delivered almost $800,000 worth of service to New

          4  York City Department of Education.  Yet, thanks to

          5  e- rate and Title IID funding, the total cost to New

          6  York City will be under $53,000 just to help with

          7  the budget discussions you guys are going through.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Yes.

          9                 MR. ROBINSON:  New York City schools

         10  are using eChalk to enhance learning for students

         11  and teachers.  Students are more engaged, and

         12  teachers are better supported and informed. Our

         13  schools are using eChalk to improve communication on

         14  all levels.  Teachers have more class time and less

         15  disruptions, parents are more engaged and informed,

         16  on the regional school and classroom level, and the

         17  community is more informed about their local school.

         18                 EChalk has proven both here, and

         19  elsewhere, that to succeed there needs to be a plan.

         20    This plan needs qualified project management and

         21  professional development.

         22                 For example, we are very excited

         23  about our newest implementation serving all 22

         24  schools in the iTeach- iLearn Initiative, which has

         25  both.  This summer alone, we will be delivering 160
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          2  hours of professional development to 300 teachers to

          3  your point, Madam Chairwoman.

          4                 However, this represents only one

          5  percent of New York City schools.  Our schools need

          6  a citywide plan.  The most frustrating experience I

          7  have had in New York City is simply that there is no

          8  excuse for this City not to be leading the nation.

          9                 EChalk was founded here.  It has been

         10  serving schools in New York City longer than any

         11  other school system in the nation, yet, others are

         12  making greater strides and having better results

         13  than New York City.  The blame, I believe, falls

         14  squarely on us as New Yorkers.  We need a long- term

         15  plan.  We need long- term support, and we need a

         16  committed and long- term funding.

         17                 The biggest implementation and

         18  adoption I have seen in New York City is that

         19  teachers are frustrated with things changing year to

         20  year.  Tools are given, tools are taken away,

         21  funding is given, it is taken away.  This is not the

         22  fault of the DOE.  This is the fault of a community

         23  that I see as disconnected from our schools.

         24                 I strongly believe New York City

         25  offers the best learning environment in the nation.

                                                            103

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT AND EDUCATION

          2  We need to empower our students, our teachers, and

          3  ourselves to reconnect, plan, and lead the nation's

          4  largest and most diverse school system.

          5                 I invite the members of these

          6  committees to view the frontlines of education,

          7  where eChalk is currently serving our schools, and I

          8  think you will be impressed to see what is happening

          9  when communication is increased within a school,

         10  between schools, and with the wider educational

         11  community.

         12                 Thank you for your time.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you very

         14  much.

         15                 We are going to hear from Elizabeth

         16  Stock, and then Nancy Mazzella.  Go ahead.

         17                 MS. STOCK:  Again, thank you for

         18  having this important hearing, and for allowing me

         19  to testify.

         20                 My name is Elizabeth Stock, and I am

         21  the President and Co- Founder of Computers for

         22  Youth, a national non- profit based in New York

         23  City.

         24                 First I wanted to thank Council for

         25  our continued support, it is because of you that we
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          2  have been able to grow this year from serving 15,000

          3  (sic) New York City families to 2,000, which is a 33

          4  percent increase.

          5                 As many of you already know, our

          6  mission is to close the learning gap between low-

          7  income children and their more affluent peers by

          8  improving the home learning environment.  Our

          9  program supports parents as learning partners and

         10  connects classroom learning with the home.

         11                 What we do is we select public middle

         12  schools with 75 percent or more students eligible

         13  for free lunch, we then offer computers to all the

         14  students in the sixth grade.  We have been hearing a

         15  lot about the sixth grade today.  Our computers are

         16  Pentium III or better.  They are donated to us by

         17  our corporate partners, such as Goldman Sachs and

         18  Time Warner.  They are refurbished by our own staff.

         19                 All the students who participate in

         20  our program not only receive a CFY computer loaded

         21  with educational software, but also training, tech

         22  support, bilingual web content and Internet access,

         23  and next year, we will be able to provide one year

         24  of free AOL accounts, premium accounts, for all our

         25  families here in New York City.
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          2                 Once the computers go home, CFY

          3  operates school based programs that leverage the

          4  technology to increase parental involvement in

          5  children's learning, and to connect the learning

          6  that happens at home with what happens in the

          7  classroom.  What makes us unique is that it is led

          8  by a management team with experience in areas often

          9  not found together, such as, education, working with

         10  low- income communities in areas of credit and

         11  housing and technology.

         12                 Now Council Member Vacca before was

         13  talking about, what about the parents.  He was

         14  asking all these questions, and I was sitting in the

         15  back going,`call on me' because what I want to talk

         16  about is that there is a fact, which is that

         17  children in our country spend only about 13 percent

         18  of their waking hours in the classroom.  And

         19  therefore, if we are really going to close the

         20  learning gap between low- income children and their

         21  more affluent peers, we have to reach beyond the

         22  classroom walls to improve children's learning

         23  environment at home.

         24                 We believe at CFY that technology is

         25  the best tool to achieve this goal.  A home computer
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          2  with Internet access, not only inspires students to

          3  learn but also draws parents into what their

          4  children are doing and helps them become more

          5  effective learning partners.  I believe there is

          6  also a study out there that shows that children's

          7  academic success, 25 percent or more can be

          8  explained by parental involvement.

          9                 Now I know many of you are thinking

         10  like this is strange, computers drawing parents in,

         11  and that is because for many families in this

         12  country especially middle- income and high income

         13  homes computers function, I call it sort of the

         14  centrifugal force theory, which is everyone in the

         15  household has a computer, they are all in different

         16  ends of the apartment or the house, they are IM- ing

         17  each other when the phone rings, and it sort of

         18  pushes people apart.

         19                 But in our homes which are low-

         20  income homes, our computers are often the only

         21  computers in the household, and it functions like a

         22  magnet, brings everyone together.  Sort of similar

         23  to way television was when it was first introduced

         24  in our country.

         25                 Now in seven years Computers for
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          2  Youth has distributed more than 8,000 computers in

          3  New York City.  We have trained more than 16,000

          4  students, parents and teachers.  The families we

          5  have reached live in East New York, East

          6  Flatbush/Brownsville, East Harlem, Washington

          7  Heights, the South Bronx, Tremont, Long Island City,

          8  Corona, Far Rockaway, and as of this June, Southwest

          9  Philadelphia.

         10                 Now, our impact has been huge.  I was

         11  going to talk a little bit about the research we

         12  have conducted and what we have seen.  One thing we

         13  have seen is that in schools that draw only ten

         14  parents for PTA meetings, we draw more than 100 for

         15  each Saturday training session.

         16                 In addition, our data shows that,

         17  consistently shown, that students feel that home

         18  computing improves their family relationships and

         19  confidence, and that both these variables were

         20  significantly linked to improved academic

         21  performance.  For example, among students whose CFY

         22  computer helped them perform better in English

         23  Language Arts, a resounding, and in my feeling,

         24  surprising, 91 percent reported that their computer

         25  improved their family relationships.  And 100
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          2  percent of those students said their computer

          3  improved their confidence, and more importantly both

          4  of those data were statistically significant.

          5                 The same study showed that five

          6  months after receiving CFY computers, students put

          7  significantly more effort into their classes as

          8  assessed by their teachers, not by the students than

          9  students in a comparison school who did not receive

         10  computers.

         11                 In the following year, we were able

         12  to show that students' reports of working harder in

         13  school because they have a home computer were

         14  positively and significantly correlated with

         15  teachers' rating of their academic improvement.

         16                 So, what we are seeing is

         17  intervention is place a computer in the home with

         18  great educational software, training and all the

         19  necessary pieces.  Kids are more motivated, they are

         20  getting more parental involvement, and that then is

         21  getting us to what we want to see, which is academic

         22  achievement.

         23                 So, what is new for us this year is

         24  we just developed a research partnership with the

         25  Educational Testing Service, that is ETS as most of
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          2  us know them, and they are going to be helping us

          3  delve deeper into these relationships between having

          4  a home computer, student motivation, parental

          5  involvement and student academic success.

          6                 We have already received approval

          7  from the New York City Department of Ed to conduct a

          8  multi- year study with ETS, and we would be happy to

          9  share that with you once we have some results.

         10                 The only other thing I was going to

         11  mention, as I just wanted to echo what Torrence has

         12  already said, which is, of the three of us who have

         13  now spoken, between Carol, Torrence and I, all of us

         14  have worked in more than New York City.  CFY is now

         15  in Philly, I know MOUSE has been working in Chicago

         16  and some other cities.  Torrence is all over the

         17  country, and what all of us are seeing, this is our

         18  home, this is where all of us want to work, and we

         19  see more innovation.  We see more excitement, more

         20  grabbing this issue, and making good with it in

         21  other cities.

         22                 I think all of us have a sense of

         23  disappointment that we are not seeing the same kind

         24  of excitement and innovation happening here.

         25                 So I just wanted to leave with that.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  I thank all

          3  three of you.

          4                 You are on, go ahead, Nancy Mazella

          5  from UFT.

          6                 MS. MAZZELLA:  My name is Nancy

          7  Mazzella.  I am an Instructional Technology

          8  Specialist with the United Federation of Teachers-

          9  Teacher Center.

         10                 On behalf of UFT President Randi

         11  Weingarten, I want to thank Councilwoman Gale Brewer

         12  and the members of the City Council Committee on

         13  Technology in Government for soliciting the union's

         14  testimony this afternoon on how best to use

         15  technology to improve classroom instruction and

         16  better educate school children.

         17                 Let me say at the outset that we

         18  support enthusiastically making the student laptop

         19  initiative a reality, and we congratulate

         20  Councilwoman Brewer for her leadership in that

         21  effort.

         22                 Because if done right, technology can

         23  draw students who are raised in a world of blogging,

         24  instant messaging, chats, podcasts, Tivos and X-

         25  boxes into a deeper learning experience.  Mastering
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          2  computer literacy is essential in an age of global

          3  information exchange.

          4                 But technology is not a cure- all.

          5  It is neither a substitute for a coherent curriculum

          6  nor is it a replacement for classroom teachers.

          7                 Laptops and the other technological

          8  marvels are tools; terrifically promising tools,

          9  high- tech wonder tools, but tools.  The push for

         10  laptops, like the introduction of any new technology

         11  into the schools, has to be instructionally driven,

         12  not technologically driven.  Technology has to fit

         13  the curriculum, not the curriculum to fit

         14  technology.

         15                 Thus the key to pairing technology

         16  with the classroom is knowing how it allows teachers

         17  to teach what they are supposed to teach, and teach

         18  it better.  It means putting pedagogy and teacher

         19  power, not purely technology, in command.

         20                 That also means not squandering the

         21  rich possibilities technology offers students, the

         22  tools they need to function in a highly

         23  technological global community.

         24                 Remember that technology in the

         25  classroom means more than laptops.  It means
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          2  SmartBoards, those interactive whiteboards that

          3  allow teachers and students to collectively share

          4  information.  It means videoconferencing with

          5  anyone, from a scholar to an astronaut to students

          6  and teachers in other classrooms.  It means PDA's,

          7  which allow students not only to take notes but to

          8  pool information and collaborate on projects in all

          9  curriculum areas.

         10                 Remember, also, that technological

         11  innovations are costly.  They need consistent and

         12  adequate funding, and not just for purchase and

         13  maintenance.  Funding to train teachers in how best

         14  to implement technology and integrate it into the

         15  curriculum is key.

         16                 That funding cannot come out of the

         17  proverbial stealing from Peter to pay Paul.  It

         18  cannot come by squeezing existing budgets,

         19  downsizing pedagogical staff or scrimping on school

         20  maintenance or school safety.  It comes from

         21  choosing good hardware, appropriate software,

         22  professional development for instructors and

         23  consistent funding.

         24                 Within those parameters, I want to

         25  give the teachers' perspective on what works best.
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          2                 Professional development works not

          3  just in the launch of new hardware, such as a one or

          4  two day training session.  We want all classroom

          5  teachers to be skilled in knowing how to integrate

          6  new technology into their everyday practice, which

          7  can only happen when professional development is

          8  ongoing. What teachers do not want is a vendor

          9  coming in for a brief boot camp exercise.  That may

         10  cover the operational side of the equation, but the

         11  hard part is integrating the use of technology in

         12  ways that enhance daily teaching practice.

         13                 Doing that harder job means

         14  professional staff developers meeting with teachers,

         15  and helping them shape their lessons.  It means

         16  providing coaching and mentoring in the classrooms.

         17  It means getting together with groups of teachers to

         18  share their successes and challenges.  Because, the

         19  problem we find over and over gain is not so much

         20  the lack of hardware in the schools, though a

         21  program that puts laptops in every child's hands is

         22  well worth initiating.  What is missing is the lack

         23  of training in how to effectively use the hardware.

         24  Too often, our teachers do not know what is the best

         25  use the new technology. Worse, they are often not
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          2  even encouraged to use them.

          3                 Note that this professional

          4  development cannot be seen as an add- on, as one

          5  more task piled on top of all the others.  Teaches

          6  want on going and sustained training integrated into

          7  the school day, not seen as extra work but a part of

          8  curriculum and professional development.

          9                 Integrated into the curriculum,

         10  technology in the classroom can do wonders.

         11                 While I have emphasized the

         12  professional development aspect, I understand that

         13  none of the wonderful learning that children can

         14  accomplish with instructional technology in the

         15  classroom can happen if the infrastructure is not

         16  there to sustain the technology.  That means every

         17  classroom should be equipped with a reliable high-

         18  speed wireless connection.  None of this can happen

         19  if the school has no one responsible for maintaining

         20  the information technology.  Just as every

         21  corporation has an IT department, every school site

         22  needs at least one individual whose sole

         23  responsibility is upgrading and maintaining the

         24  hardware and software.

         25                 If we pay attention to providing both
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          2  of these things, the infrastructure to sustain the

          3  technology, and the ongoing professional development

          4  that can integrate technology into the curriculum,

          5  our teachers will be able to perform their jobs as

          6  professionals, and our school children will get the

          7  educations they deserve.

          8                 I look forward to answering any

          9  questions.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you for

         11  your wonderful testimony.  I really appreciate it.

         12                 Michelle Pullaro.

         13                 MS. PULLARO:  Thank you to the

         14  Committee for allowing me to remark on how classroom

         15  instruction can be improved through the use of

         16  technology.

         17                 I am Michelle Pullero, and I am the

         18  Chief Operating Office of Per Scholas, and we are a

         19  Bronx- based New York City non- profit dedicated to

         20  making the advantages of computer technology

         21  available in low- income communities.

         22                 Per Scholas has been serving the

         23  community for over ten years, and we have

         24  distributed 55,000 computers with the lowest

         25  possible cost to low- income families, trained 1,200

                                                            116

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT AND EDUCATION

          2  community residents to become computer technicians,

          3  and obtain careers in the computer field, and

          4  created over 50 jobs in the South Bronx.

          5                 Through Per Scholas' Comp2Kids

          6  program, we provide middle school children in low-

          7  income communities with training, home computers,

          8  and technical support for the life of the computer,

          9  very similar to the Computers for Youth Initiative.

         10                 Technology savvy professionals that

         11  are recruited from large corporations such as Credit

         12  Suisse, Bearing Point, Accenture and Goldman and

         13  Sachs provide computer training for teaches,

         14  parents, and children as well assisting in the

         15  actual distribution of the computers.  The unique

         16  part of our program is bringing these professionals

         17  from these corporations into the schools, and

         18  actually showing the students that there is an

         19  investment from these professionals in these

         20  communities, and a care for these students.

         21                 An interesting example in Roberto

         22  Clemente, which is I.S. 195, in which they had Sun

         23  Microsystems stored in the back closet because

         24  nobody in the school actually knew what to do with

         25  them, and one of the professionals from Bearing
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          2  Point took a look at these systems, and recognized

          3  how much of a tremendous benefit it could be to the

          4  schools to have what is called these`thin systems'

          5  in the classrooms, instead of having CPU's and full

          6  PC's, and so what the Bearing Point volunteers did,

          7  is they spent five weekends specifically equipping

          8  the entire school with 100 thin systems throughout

          9  the school, which brought down significantly the

         10  number of technical issues, viruses, all those types

         11  of things, and provided a real, larger extent

         12  technology into the classroom.  So, it really not

         13  only brings beyond getting the computers into the

         14  home and providing the individual students with home

         15  computers, it provides a connection with

         16  corporations in the community which is really

         17  tremendous.

         18                 There are many valuable educational

         19  tools that we have spoken about quite a lot today on

         20  the Internet, such as a New York Times daily quiz

         21  that allows students to stay abreast of current

         22  issues.

         23                 There is HomeworkNewYorkCity.org,

         24  provides valuable teaching tools on everything from

         25  algebra to Haitian Mythology, and then there is the
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          2  Educational Resources Information Center, which is a

          3  digital library of educational related resources.

          4                 The New York City Department of Ed

          5  leads a lot of children to these resources, however,

          6  without a home computer many of the students, even

          7  those most in need, do not have access to these

          8  resources.

          9                 In addition, a home computer allows

         10  parent and teacher interaction as teachers can more

         11  easily communicate with parents, and assist parents

         12  in supporting their learning at home. And in those

         13  situations when a sick from school, the opportunity

         14  to distribute home assignments prevents many of the

         15  children from falling behind, again, when they have

         16  missed some class time.

         17                 Through Per Scholas' Comp2Kids

         18  program we have provided 1,071 middle school

         19  students with home desktop computers, 250 teachers

         20  and administrators with laptop home computers in

         21  order to provide mostly our students the tools that

         22  they need outside the classroom to compete inside

         23  the classroom.

         24                 Technology is continuing pervade

         25  middle- class, lack of computer skills and access to
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          2  resources is becoming a significant barrier to life-

          3  long economic, intellectual, and social success in

          4  low- income communities.

          5                 In October of 2003, the National

          6  Center for Education and Statistics issued a report

          7  which indicated that although public schools had

          8  made great strides in providing computers and

          9  Internet access in school, minority and poor

         10  students still lacked computer access outside of

         11  school hours.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Maybe you could

         13  sum up if you do not mind.

         14                 MS. PULLARO:  Yes, nothing is more

         15  important than the results.

         16                 Since Comp2Kids launched the program

         17  at Roberto Clemente, I.S. 195 in West Harlem, there

         18  has been an increase in student attendance rates, an

         19  increase in the level of computer literacy for both

         20  students and teachers, and an improvement in the

         21  quality of teachers that have been recruited, and

         22  higher teacher retention rates from the access to

         23  laptop computers to improve instruction.

         24                 Additionally, Roberto Clemente has a

         25  website utilizing actually eChalk, and each class
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          2  has a personal page on the site.  After Roberto

          3  Clemente was identified as a SURR school in 2001,

          4  they instituted a Comp2Kids program and was taken

          5  off of SURR in 2004, and Ora Rivera (phonetic) the

          6  principal of the school said that the Comp2Kids

          7  program was one significant reason for Roberto

          8  Clemente being amongst one of the first large New

          9  York City schools to be released from SURR.  That

         10  was a huge accomplishment for us.  The Comp2Kids

         11  program and the support of their volunteers had a

         12  very positive impact on our school.  I hope this

         13  program will continue year after year.

         14                 So, we believe here at Per Scholas

         15  that it is our responsibility to provide children

         16  with the necessities to succeed in school and enter

         17  the economic mainstream.

         18                 Per Scholas applauds the City Council

         19  for launching this very important initiative and we

         20  will do whatever it takes to support you in this

         21  endeavor.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

         24  much.

         25                 We have been joined by Council Member
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          2  Jessica Lappin from Manhattan who has been going

          3  back and forth, I think, between the hearings and

          4  the great head of the Parks Committee, Council

          5  Member Helen Foster from the great borough of the

          6  Bronx.

          7                 Our next speaker is Amanda Crowley

          8  from Eyebeam, and anything you can do to summarize

          9  would be appreciated.

         10                 MS. MCDONALD- CROWLEY:  Thank you

         11  very much Councilwoman Brewer.

         12                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         13  testify on improving classroom instruction through

         14  the use of technology.

         15                 My name is Amanda McDonald- Crowley,

         16  and I am the Executive Director of Eyebeam Art and

         17  Technology Center in Chelsea.

         18                 It is a pleasure to be here to

         19  testify today about the importance of technology,

         20  and from our perspective, the arts within the school

         21  system.

         22                 These days, one would think that no

         23  one would argue this point.  Study after study has

         24  shown that students who have arts and technological

         25  training in the mix perform better across every
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          2  indicator.  Furthermore, artists and cultural

          3  practitioners have long been key innovators in the

          4  use of new technologies.

          5                 And yet the City Council's own

          6  reports have shown that historically, when push

          7  comes to shove, it is the arts that are relegated to

          8  the margin.

          9                 These same reports show that

         10  technology, which fares somewhat better than the

         11  arts, still suffers from insufficient resources to

         12  keep the public school system up to date with

         13  hardware and software, while striving to reduce the

         14  number of students sharing a computer.

         15                 I had a figure here that talked about

         16  reducing one in eight to one in four student-

         17  computers per student but still that is not quite

         18  enough, and there is still a lot of competition for

         19  scarce technological resources.

         20                 As we live in a world surrounded by

         21  more and more digital technology it becomes

         22  increasingly important to understand that our role

         23  as educators is to provide technology in support of

         24  existing content areas like language, arts, science,

         25  and math be equally importantly, it is to guide
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          2  young people in a critical understanding of the

          3  technology they are using.

          4                 We must work with young people to

          5  assist them to be not simply consumers of technology

          6  but equip them as active participants, contributing

          7  to cultural, social, scientific and economic content

          8  enable to the technology.

          9                 Eyebeam has always regarded itself as

         10  a partner in this endeavor with the students and

         11  teachers of the New York City public school system,

         12  the School Board, the parents, and now the City

         13  Council.

         14                 It is no longer enough to just spend

         15  some money on computers, software, and an Internet

         16  connection, and I am not the first person to have

         17  said that today, and I know that Councilwoman Brewer

         18  has also been quoted as saying similar things.

         19                 Effective technology integration for

         20  K through 12 classrooms today has to include a

         21  critical understanding of the technology itself,

         22  particularly when it comes to information.

         23                 Given that we are living and working

         24  in a city with some of the greatest technology

         25  innovators in the world, we should exploit every
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          2  opportunity to partner young people with the

          3  creative people who are pushing the technology, and

          4  inventing tomorrow's state- of- the- art.

          5

          6

          7

          8
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         10
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         15

         16

         17
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         19
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         23
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          2                 Eyebeam Art and Technology Center was

          3  founded in 1997 to be just the kind of place where

          4  creativity would thrive at the nexus of art and

          5  technology.  It comprises three core aspects; an

          6  education and learning lab, a research and

          7  development lab, and a production studio.

          8                 At Eyebeam, the Education and

          9  Learning Lab came first, a place to foster

         10  collaboration with the public school system,

         11  cultural institutions, and community organizations.

         12                 Eyebeam placed its earliest emphasis

         13  on meeting the art and technology needs of

         14  underserved public school students, those least able

         15  to bridge the digital divide.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Can you just

         17  start to sum up because I know you know your

         18  material really well.

         19                 MS. MCDONALD- CROWLEY:  Terrific, and

         20  we have been dedicated to providing learning

         21  experience to leverage the power of technology in

         22  both of those communities.  I think our focus has

         23  been important but it is both the student and the

         24  teacher with artists always as the lead educator.

         25                 We involve students in tasks that
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          2  elicit higher order thinking, that build on a

          3  mastery of basis concepts and skills acquired in

          4  school and at home.

          5                 We are interested in using digital

          6  tools to foster creativity, to provide opportunities

          7  for students to be active participants, using

          8  technology to create meaningful projects.

          9                 I think the core of my argument is

         10  that, I mean, as an example of what I am talking

         11  about, if you are talking about the wireless

         12  transmission of environmental data from sensors in

         13  one's own neighborhood for example, to computers in

         14  the classroom might help students understand ecology

         15  and public health issues in ways that are not

         16  discernible through a text book.

         17                 One of our current artists in

         18  residence, and we have 23 at the moment, Brooke

         19  Singer, is prototyping portable air quality

         20  measurement kits that could be used to monitor

         21  various air pollutants in risk areas.  Think of what

         22  kind of aspect this technology could have on our

         23  neighborhoods with high asthma rates, like central

         24  Harlem or Williamsburg/Bushwick.

         25                 Our experience spans the full range
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          2  of school age population, with the exception of pre-

          3  school.  We have month- long programs during our

          4  summer that meld our technology and social issues,

          5  and after- school atelier program that teaches teens

          6  digital imaging techniques.  But they also get their

          7  hands onto advanced technologies that we employ with

          8  our artists including 3D printing and fabrication,

          9  laser cutting, 3D modeling software, data

         10  visualization and physical computing.

         11                 We have programs specifically for

         12  girl's, taught be female artists, addressing the

         13  tendency for girls to move away from technology when

         14  there is competition from boys.

         15                 My prime objective for being here

         16  this afternoon is to encourage the Council to do

         17  everything in its power to ensure sufficient

         18  resources for the most modern technology

         19  infrastructure, and the training that goes with it

         20  across the system.

         21                 Technology in education is not just a

         22  matter of employability, but one of social and civic

         23  awareness, empowerment, and responsibility.

         24                 When the basic foundations are laid

         25  within the school system, our job of creating the
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          2  next generation of artists and informed citizens is

          3  made that much easier.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

          6  much.

          7                 Arlaina Tibensky from Vision

          8  Education and Media.

          9                 MS. TIBENSKY:  Yes hi, I am from

         10  Vision Education and Media.  I am not Laura Allen,

         11  she has been called away so I am not trying to take

         12  over.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  I know that, I

         14  know Laura Allen, okay.

         15                 MS. TIBENSKY:  I have a fancy slide

         16  show actually for--.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay, just do

         18  not make it too long.

         19                 MS. TIBENSKY:  It might take forever

         20  to pull it up, so I would be more than happy to talk

         21  you through it.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  So, yes, just

         23  keep talking if you want because I know you know

         24  your material.

         25                 MS. TIBENSKY:  Vision Education and
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          2  Media was founded by Laura Allen in 1994, with the

          3  support of Dr. Seymour Papert (phonetic) who was a

          4  mentor in the early development of our company.

          5                 We help schools and community- based

          6  organizations use technology creatively and

          7  effectively to empower students to think in new and

          8  different ways.

          9                 I have been sitting here listening to

         10  everyone all day, and it has been really great, and

         11  I would like to really kind of piggyback on what

         12  Nancy Mazzella was saying about having authentic

         13  teaching experiences for teachers and for students.

         14  We have partnered with many innovators in

         15  educational technology fields, such as M.I.T. Media

         16  Lab, the Playful Invention Company, the High School

         17  of Computers and Technology in the Bronx, N.Y.U.'s

         18  ITP Program, and Fordham's RET Center.

         19                 In the last eight years, we have

         20  received funding from funders who are looking to

         21  really push the envelope about what educational

         22  technology can actually do for kids.  Such as, the

         23  National Science Foundation, the Twenty- First

         24  Century Community Learning Centers, New York City

         25  Department of Instructional Technology, and New
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          2  Visions for Public Schools.

          3                 We have learned a lot of lessons from

          4  the front lines of teaching.  We are in schools all

          5  throughout Manhattan, some in Brooklyn, mostly in

          6  the Bronx.  So, we work with schools at all

          7  different functional levels, economic levels, and

          8  technology levels.  One thing that we are really

          9  looking for in general is basic leadership, not just

         10  from the Board of Ed and material support, but from

         11  the schools themselves.  Technology adds a lot of

         12  options and complications but not everyone is ready

         13  for this.  I mean, I could not even get my stupid

         14  power point to work and this is like- I am a

         15  technology education specialist, but that is

         16  ridiculous, and that is me, and when you are in a

         17  school situation, that is very common as well.

         18                 So, throwing more computers and more

         19  technology at schools that are having trouble is not

         20  necessarily the best solution.  Vision Education is

         21  really committed to good computer use, and

         22  constructivist approaches to using technology.  We

         23  really want students to have an authentic, a hot

         24  experience, when they are working with computers or

         25  technology, and when there is this big calculator
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          2  debacle in the beginning of the hearing, I mean,

          3  that is a technology, that is a technology that is

          4  maybe not being used as well as it should be.  So,

          5  we like to kind of have a low- tech approach to high

          6  tech applications.

          7                 What constitutes good or productive

          8  computer use? We feel it is making, writing, and

          9  building things using technology.  So we do a lot of

         10  work with Lego Robotics.  We do a lot with digital

         11  movies.  We had this really great blogging program

         12  at a high school in the South Bronx, making

         13  newspapers, making video games, writing stories,

         14  letters, doing research within scaffolded situations

         15  for students.  So, they can actually apply

         16  technology to something that means something else to

         17  them. I have these really cute pictures of some

         18  robots, but I cannot pull them up.  But our Lego

         19  Robotics initiatives have been very successful, I

         20  think because students are attaching meaning to

         21  technology to what they are creating.  But much in

         22  the same way, we really need teachers to have this

         23  same experience too.  The professional development

         24  we really feel is the key.

         25                 Teachers need training, and it not

                                                            132

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT AND EDUCATION

          2  just a one hour workshop after school that they

          3  might be getting a little extra money for to help

          4  develop their use of computers.  We are talking

          5  about constant support, constant`ah- ha' moments for

          6  them, so the teachers make a robot and enjoy it so

          7  they are able to go to their students and teach them

          8  how to make a robot too, and why it is fun, and why

          9  it is necessary.  Now, robots sound so cute but

         10  robots represent programming, it represents higher

         11  level thinking, it represents most of the stem

         12  disciplines of science technology, engineering and

         13  mathematics, so we like to use robotics as an

         14  example of how we approach constructivist technology

         15  education.

         16                 Adding technology can also be adding

         17  a new paradigm.  I know Troy Fischer way earlier

         18  talked about change management.  Logistically, this

         19  is a huge, I mean I cannot even imagine what it all

         20  means to bring all this technology to so many

         21  individual schools, individual principals,

         22  individual students but to think about technology

         23  differently, I think, is really important.  Like

         24  teachers need to change their thinking about the

         25  role of a teacher in a classroom.  They do not need
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          2  to be- I mean, you talk about how terrible talk and

          3  chalk is.  It is not so terrible but if the teachers

          4  are really engaged in technology, it is not a threat

          5  to them, it is a tool for them as well.

          6                 Teachers also need the space and time

          7  to experiment doing that in front of 20 kids, 30

          8  kids, is maybe not the best time.  So, they need to

          9  feel comfortable--.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  You just need to

         11  sum up, I am sorry.

         12                 MS. TIBENSKY:  Almost finished.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay.

         14                 MS. TIBENSKY:  Using computers, to

         15  use them as electronic workbooks is kind of missing

         16  the point.  You want to use them as a tool for

         17  creation and creativity.

         18                 So, that was pretty much my last

         19  little thing there.

         20                 So, thank you very much.  I

         21  appreciate the time, and I am really sorry Laura

         22  could not be here.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

         24  much.

         25                 We are not going to do questions only
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          2  because we are just under huge time constraints.

          3  But, I just want to say that there are so many

          4  things that have come out of your discussion,

          5  obviously we need a plan of the very specific

          6  recommendations that Carol Wacey made, and I think

          7  Elizabeth Stock sort of summed it up by saying New

          8  York City needs to catch up.

          9                 Thank you very much to United

         10  Federation of Teachers for your very specific ways

         11  in which computers can be used in the classroom.

         12  Arts was talked about by Eyebeam, and certainly

         13  different ways of thinking through vision education.

         14                 So, we have all of your testimony and

         15  we will be following up.  Thank you very much.

         16                 Our next panel is Lyn Stanfield,

         17  Strategic Initiatives Manager from Apple Computer,

         18  Melanie Feckedy (phonetic) who was Strategic Public

         19  Sector Programs at Intel Americas, Pamela Haas,

         20  Manager of Corporate Community Relations at IBM, and

         21  they are going to be joined at the table by William

         22  Talley, who is the Senior Research Scientist at the

         23  Center for Children and Technology at Education

         24  Development Center, Jose Rodriguez who is President

         25  and CEO of the Hispanic Information and
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          2  Telecommunications Network, and Ron Thorpe who is

          3  Vice President and Director of Education at Channel

          4  13.

          5                 Good afternoon, who would like to

          6  begin?  Go right ahead.

          7                 MS. HAAS:  Good afternoon, I am

          8  Pamela Haas, Manager of IBM Community Relations here

          9  in New York City.

         10                 I am responsible for IBM's community

         11  programs, philanthropy and volunteer programs.

         12                 Over the last ten years, IBM has been

         13  one of the leading corporate contributors of cash,

         14  technology and talent to non- profit organizations

         15  and educational institutions across the United

         16  States and around the world.  We are committed to

         17  applying our skill and ability as an innovator

         18  against the challenges that exist in communities

         19  across the globe, addressing both education and

         20  societal concerns and doing so in a fundamental and

         21  systemic way.

         22                 Thank you for giving me the

         23  opportunity to share with you our experience and

         24  perspective.  At IBM, "Innovation that matters for

         25  our company and for the world" is one of our core
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          2  values; we work to put this value into action every

          3  day we create new technologies and services that

          4  make a difference for our customers here in New York

          5  and around the globe.

          6                 In education, innovation is

          7  imperative if students are to meet the increasingly

          8  complex demands of a global economy. Only by

          9  designing and implementing new strategies, and by

         10  creating new tools and resources can we help our

         11  students achieve at higher levels and prepare for

         12  success in the Innovation Economy.  Schools alone

         13  cannot be the breeding ground for innovation;

         14  businesses and community organizations will play a

         15  critical role in igniting innovation in education.

         16                 From both a business and

         17  philanthropic perspective, IBM's commitment to

         18  education has always been a consistent one.  Provide

         19  innovative, high quality technology solutions and

         20  services that bridge the gap between the educator

         21  and the learner, allowing teachers to spend more

         22  time teaching and students to spend more time

         23  learning.

         24                 Although computers and other

         25  technologies are simply tools in the education
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          2  process, they are transforming those processes

          3  daily.  Students who do not have exposure to and the

          4  benefit of these tools will be unable to compete in

          5  the world we are creating for them.

          6                 IBM also recognizes that "having"

          7  technology is not enough.  A computer, for instance,

          8  can never replace a good teacher, and Internet

          9  access and computer labs alone cannot improve

         10  instruction.  But these tools, when well integrated

         11  into the classroom and coupled with effective

         12  teacher training, are essential to improving

         13  teaching and learning.

         14                 IBM's suite of products, along with

         15  our history of philanthropy, are a testament to our

         16  intellectual capital, as is the sheer volume and

         17  scope of our experiences with school districts

         18  across the United States and around the world.  If

         19  the goal is to bridge the gap and pull students into

         20  the learning environment by using technology, it

         21  cannot be just another line item or another

         22  purchasing requirement bought in bulk at a great

         23  discount.  So often, schools see flashy demo's of

         24  the latest, greatest fads and gadgets it is

         25  difficult to decide on the most effective teaching
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          2  tools.

          3                 I just wanted to talk, and I will not

          4  do this from my papers because it will take too

          5  long.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  And you can just

          7  summarize because you know it so well, Pamela.

          8                 So go ahead.

          9                 MS. HAAS:  Okay, and there are a few

         10  corporate philanthropic initiatives that IBM has

         11  shared with the Department of Ed, and one is a web-

         12  based tool for professional development called the

         13   "Change ToolKit" and it is based on the work of

         14  Harvard Professor Rosabeth Moss Kanter, and I also

         15  wanted to tell you a little bit about IBM and the

         16  Computer Science Teachers Association, and have

         17  recently introduced free access to computer science

         18  resources for high school teachers.  It is

         19  curriculum- it is great professional development,

         20  and we also have a program called our KidSmart Early

         21  Learning program where we have a couple of Regions

         22  1, 2, 5, 6, 9 and 10 that have been recipients of

         23  our "Young Explorers" computers, and there is two

         24  educational websites as well that everybody should

         25  know about.  We think they are great.  One is
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          2  TryScience it is the first global science museum,

          3  and another one is called Eternal Egypt, which is

          4  not only full of educational resources, but you can

          5  actually take a virtual tour of the pyramid.

          6                 There are some accessibility sites

          7  that are really important, Traducelo Ahora is a web-

          8  based tool that will change English language

          9  websites to Spanish, and it is a great tool.  It is

         10  being used in some schools now, and we are going

         11  into the second phase of Traducelo Ahora, which will

         12  have the ability to translate emails from English to

         13  Spanish, and Spanish to English, and we think that

         14  within this next phase it will further assist in

         15  teacher- parent communication.

         16                 Web Adaptation Technology and

         17  Accessibility Work is a software that enables people

         18  with special needs, vision, cognitive or motor

         19  limitations to customize the way they vie web pages

         20  on the web, so you can change font size, and you can

         21  change background color, and you can remove

         22  distracting backgrounds and stop animations.  We

         23  think it is a wonderful tool.

         24                 Last but not least, I do want to

         25  mention that in September 2005, IBM announced

                                                            140

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT AND EDUCATION

          2  Transition to Teaching, which we think is yet

          3  another IBM innovation.  We actually are leveraging

          4  our greatest assets with our employees.  Many of our

          5  employees have math and science backgrounds, even if

          6  they are in software development, research, and

          7  management, and it is a way for us to address the

          8  shortage in math and science teachers and provide

          9  assistance to our employees enabling them to become

         10  fully accredited teachers and go back into teaching

         11  in their local communities when they leave IBM.

         12                 So real quick, thank you for giving

         13  me the opportunity to speak, and I look forward to

         14  continuing these discussions.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

         16  much.

         17                 Lyn Stanfield, thank you.

         18                 MS. STANFIELD:  Thank you very much,

         19  Madam Chair.

         20                 I certainly understand the need for

         21  brevity in situations like this.

         22                 I would certainly like to start off

         23  by thanking you for, I certainly applaud you for

         24  taking on this charge because technology in

         25  education is so very important.
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          2                 Not to belabor any of the points that

          3  we have heard earlier, there are two things that I

          4  would really like to talk about today.

          5                 One of which is twenty- first century

          6  skills, and the need for twenty- first century

          7  skills and the students that are in our classrooms

          8  today.  My brief bio mentioned that I served as the

          9  Strategic Relations Manager for Apple Computer, and

         10  I probably traveled further than anyone else because

         11  I came from Florida for this meeting.  But at the

         12  same time, I also chair the state's Digital Divide

         13  Council, and so, that is the other issue that I

         14  would like to talk about is equity and learning

         15  styles of students.

         16                 I will begin with twenty- first

         17  century learning. The students that are in our

         18  classroom today are going to be challenged to

         19  compete in a global marketplace.  What kind of

         20  skills do they need to have in order to prepare them

         21  to be successful?  Higher order of thinking skills,

         22  certainly.  They need to be able to create

         23  information.  They need to be able to communicate

         24  that information.  They need to be able to take in

         25  information and synthesize it and regurgitate it.
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          2  And what research has shown is that technology plays

          3  and ever important role in providing those skills

          4  for those students.  No longer as students competing

          5  school against school, district against district.

          6  We are not even competing state against state.  Our

          7  students are now competing globally, they are

          8  competing in the global marketplace.  I often say

          9  education is the biggest business that we have

         10  because it is our students today that are going to

         11  become our work force of tomorrow.  So, the need for

         12  technology in today's classrooms, and I have not

         13  heard that really reinforced through much of the

         14  testimony today.  It is very, very important to

         15  prepare our students for a world of tomorrow, when

         16  we do not even know what will exist, but we know

         17  that technology will continue to be an ever

         18  important part of our society.

         19                 Secondly, equity and the need for

         20  addressing different learning styles.  Councilman

         21  Felder, I believe is his name, mentioned earlier

         22  that he had a learning disability, and many of our

         23  students in schools today have some type of learning

         24  disability, exceptional students, students who have

         25  trouble reading, students who have trouble computing
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          2  math, varying learning styles.  If we were to take a

          3  sample of everyone in this room today, we would all

          4  have different learning styles.  I, for example, am

          5  a visual learner.  You may learn via hearing.  You

          6  may be a tactical learner and more hands one.

          7  Imagine this is a classroom now, if a teacher were

          8  standing in front and had to meet all of the four or

          9  five different learning styles that exist, how would

         10  they do that without creating four or five different

         11  lessons?  And we know, research has shown us, that

         12  technology is the only way that a teacher can meet

         13  the varying learning styles of students, including

         14  students who have attention deficit disorder.  But

         15  specifically, students who have specifically

         16  different learning styles, and need that visual

         17  stimulation.  I have a two year old son, and

         18  everything that he has makes noise, it lights up, he

         19  is always stimulated by something.  And then, what

         20  happens when these students in the next three years

         21  when he goes into a kindergarten classroom?  If his

         22  classroom mimics the one that I came through, we are

         23  going to have problems.  A lot of our students are

         24  actually misdiagnosed only because the environment

         25  in which they are learning is not an engaging
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          2  environment.  They are accustomed to being inundated

          3  with multiple forms of media.  They can synthesize

          4  it, this is their world.  We call these students the

          5  millennials.  For students who are poor, students of

          6  poverty, also students of color and students who are

          7  not from our country, technology is also very, very

          8  important to them.

          9                 What research has shown is that in

         10  every situation, those are the students when

         11  technology is immersed in the learning environment

         12  that actually do the best.  And that is because

         13  those students have such a way to go.  I mean, they

         14  are coming from such extreme circumstances that it

         15  is the students of poverty, it is the students of

         16  color, it is the students who are not from our

         17  country who are actually given the best opportunity

         18  to succeed.

         19                 So, as we look at what difference

         20  does technology make, we know, and I think you have

         21  heard today that technology makes a huge difference.

         22    The question is then, how do you get there?

         23  Several people have said this, and I would really

         24  like to echo it, I cannot tell you how important

         25  this is, it is a paradigm shift in how we view
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          2  technology in the classroom.  It is not a one

          3  purchase and then let us see what happens.  It has

          4  got to be a consistent two or three, or maybe even

          5  four year refresh in technology purchases.  And that

          6  is because technology continues to evolve, and we

          7  want to make sure that our students have the latest

          8  and current technology.  Professional development

          9  has been talked about today, and that is something

         10  that is so important.  There was a council member

         11  earlier who said that, "I have been to schools, and

         12  there is computers, and the teachers are not using

         13  them."

         14                 Well, I see that as a two- pronged

         15  approach. Number one, maybe the teachers have not

         16  been trained and counseled, Madam Chair, I think you

         17  eluded to that earlier, have not been trained to us

         18  the technology.

         19                 But secondly, imagine you are a

         20  teacher of 20 years, and you have taught this same

         21  lesson every year.  Now you are being asked to

         22  integrate technology into the curriculum, and so,

         23  you have a piece of technology but when you get up

         24  in front of those 25 or 30 students in your class,

         25  if that technology does not work, what do you think
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          2  is going to happen?  That teacher is going to put

          3  that computer or that digital tool to the side, and

          4  they are going to continue teaching the same way

          5  that they have taught for 20 years.

          6                 Professional development is very

          7  important, and as we begin to think about rolling

          8  technology out to schools in New York City.  We have

          9  got to bear in mind that teachers must know, not

         10  only, how to use it but also how to troubleshoot the

         11  technology, and so, training is very, very

         12  important.

         13                 I will close with this thought.  I

         14  once heard a college professor say that technology

         15  is only technology for those who came before the

         16  technology.  Our students today, again, this is

         17  their world.  They are absolutely ready for it, and

         18  implementing a plan, one of the methodologies that

         19  Apple Computer uses is to go in and do a specific

         20  assessment.  When you are deploying technology,

         21  there is no cookie cutter approach.  The issues that

         22  you have in your district are going to be very

         23  different in your district, are going to be very

         24  different in other council members districts, and so

         25  there is no cookie cutter approach to go in and say,
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          2   "Here is the model and we are going to replicate

          3  this a thousand, seven- hundred times."  You have

          4  really got to go in and understand the nature of

          5  teaching and learning in that specific institution

          6  prior to the technology deployment. That is a large

          7  charge.  It takes great partners in order to do

          8  that, and again, I applaud you all for taking on

          9  this issue and thank you so much for your time

         10  today.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you for

         12  coming from Florida, you should move to New York.

         13                 Melanie, go ahead.

         14                 MS. FECKEDY:  Thank you very much,

         15  Council Chair for giving Intel the opportunity to

         16  testify on improving classroom instruction through

         17  the use of technology.

         18                 My name is Melanie Feckedy, I am part

         19  of the Strategic Public Sector Programs Group at

         20  Intel.

         21                 What our group does is we focus on

         22  two key areas. One is improving education, working

         23  with large school districts in states on how to

         24  accelerate the use of technology in the classroom.

         25  The other focus is around digital inclusion, and
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          2  helping communities and states put together programs

          3  that focus on digital inclusion, very much relevant

          4  to what Council Member Vacca was talking about

          5  earlier, and how do we get computers, broadband

          6  access, and computer training into the homes of the

          7  parents of school- aged children.  So, that is

          8  something that is very top in mind for us.

          9                 What I would like to talk about today

         10  is not only about the effective use of technology

         11  but also focus on twenty first century skills, the

         12  importance of teaching the twenty- first century

         13  skills to our kids, and helping them compete in

         14  today's new knowledge- based economy.

         15                 Today's students are a fast paced,

         16  multi- tasking generation that has grown up with

         17  multi- media, video games, mobile phones and the

         18  Internet.  This has changed the way the absorb and

         19  process information, and it has changed what it

         20  takes to engage them.  And change is what is

         21  required to equip them with twenty- first century

         22  skills needed for academic excellence and success in

         23  the global work place.  Twenty- first century career

         24  skills demand the use of computers to be competitive

         25  in the global economy.  Where nearly all U.S.
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          2  Schools currently use computers, the demand to

          3  create one- to- one access for all students is

          4  increasing exponentially.

          5                 As we look to the vision of twenty-

          6  first century learning, the following must be

          7  considered.  There are five areas that I would like

          8  to highlight.

          9                 The first is 21st Century content.

         10  Several significant emerging content areas are

         11  critical to the success in communities and work

         12  places.  These content areas typically are not

         13  emphasized in schools today.  They are global

         14  awareness, financial, economic, business and

         15  entrepreneurial literacy, civic literacy, and health

         16  and wellness awareness.

         17                 Number two is learning and thinking

         18  skills.  As much as students need to learn academic

         19  content, they also need to know how to keep

         20  learning, and make effective and innovative use of

         21  what they know.  Some of examples of these learning

         22  and thinking skills include communication skills,

         23  collaboration skills, critical thinking, problem

         24  solving, creativity, and innovation skills.  All

         25  those key word skills that our companies today are
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          2  looking for.

          3                 The third is ICT literacy,

          4  Information, Communications and Technology Literacy.

          5    As Lyn has mentioned, computers and technology

          6  really need to be looked at in the schools as a hard

          7  cost, the same as a desk, something that needs to be

          8  budgeted for every year.  What we see many school

          9  districts doing is doing a lease, a multi- year

         10  lease where they are actually looking at the cost of

         11  a student per year to engage them with the

         12  technology.  So, students must be able to use

         13  technology not only to play games, but to learn

         14  content and skills so they know how to learn and

         15  think critically.

         16                 The forth is life skills.  The

         17  challenge is to incorporate these essential skills

         18  into schools deliberately, strategically and

         19  broadly.  Some examples include leadership, personal

         20  productivity, self direction and accountability.

         21                 The fifth is 21st Century

         22  assessments.  Twenty- first Century assessments much

         23  measure, not only core subjects, but all of the

         24  skill sets that I mentioned above.

         25                 To close, an investment in 21st
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          2  Century technology brings new life to the learning

          3  environment, aspiring students to reach new levels

          4  of academic achievement.  Educators who take this

          5  opportunity to transform leaning in their schools

          6  are seeing dramatic results.  Not only with

          7  students, but teachers, administrators and parents

          8  as well.

          9                 Thank you very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you.

         11                 Mr. Rodriguez welcome.  Always good

         12  to see you.

         13                 MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Again as always, I

         14  would like to congratulate you for this hearing

         15  today.  This hearing reflects one of your many

         16  commitments and concerns that you have demonstrated

         17  over the years to issues that are important to all

         18  New Yorkers.

         19                 There have been a lot of testimony

         20  today in how you can integrate technology and the

         21  various factors that should be taken into

         22  consideration.  I do not want to address some of

         23  those.  I do want to touch upon one that was

         24  addressed by the council member who was here before,

         25  and some of the Board of Ed representatives.
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          2                 Before I do that, I want to indicate

          3  who we are. HITN is a non-profit organization based

          4  here in New York City, at the Brooklyn Navy Yard.

          5  We are making our own great strides in the areas of

          6  telecommunications and distance education, with

          7  special consideration for the underserved minority

          8  populations, particularly the Latino populations, in

          9  New York, and the whole U.S., and in the Caribbean

         10  in Puerto Rico.

         11                 Integrating advanced

         12  telecommunications technology in education and

         13  community settings is the heart of what we do.     We

         14  believe that education could benefit, no only from

         15  incorporating technology in the classroom but also

         16  by connecting parents at home to schools and

         17  community- based organizations.  That is the area

         18  that I want to emphasize, how to connect to the

         19  parents.  I believe that parents is a very integral,

         20  must be, an integral component in the learning

         21  process that takes place in the classroom, and we

         22  have to do everything that we can to engage them in

         23  that process.  Technology can facilitate the

         24  incorporation of parents into the educational

         25  process.  HITN has developed a concept that I want
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          2  to describe briefly that can make this to happen.

          3                 HITN is offering CBO's Connect; an

          4  innovative distribution model for delivering content

          5  to and from community based organizations.  CBO's

          6  Connect will enable organizations to modify their

          7  facilities with a satellite- based, advanced

          8  telecommunications infrastructure that will allow

          9  them to receive and transmit programming relevant to

         10  the needs of the immediate community.  This

         11  infrastructure will provide CBO's with the

         12  capability to share content and experiences with

         13  other CBO's and their local schools also.  The CBO

         14  Connect concept will provide CBO's with a Broadband

         15  connection, which will enable them to receive

         16  applications and services such as Distance

         17  Education, like GED and Health Education, e-

         18  learning, Teletraining, Voice over IP,

         19  Videoconferencing capabilities, High- speed Internet

         20  connectivity.  We also provide technical assistance

         21  and support and training, most importantly that have

         22  been mentioned here earlier, not only important for

         23  the teachers, but we believe that in order to

         24  integrate technology in a community setting, you

         25  also have to provide a lot of training.  Also, we
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          2  will be connecting the CBO's with multiple sources

          3  of content throughout the United States.

          4                 Very recently, some of our CBO's

          5  reconnected to a museum in Cleveland, and they were

          6  able to receive a distance learning presentation of

          7  that particular museum, and we are seeing some of

          8  the vendors identifying sources of content like this

          9  that could be connected in a videoconferencing

         10  format so that information that was not really

         11  available to, not only to students, in this case

         12  students are sometimes adults, now is really

         13  available.

         14                 We believe, and that is the other

         15  point that I want to make here today- oh by the way,

         16  I wanted to indicate that CBO's Connect is now- we

         17  started working in five regions in New York state;

         18  Buffalo, Syracuse, Rochester, Amsterdam, New York,

         19  and Long Island.  We are connecting the most

         20  important Latino CBO's in those communities.  Some

         21  of them already had and we make sure that they

         22  already, in every case, had a computer lab because

         23  we are bringing e- learning content to those labs,

         24  and also these are centers that have to, as part of

         25  the commitment to working with us, have to bring
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          2  their committee into those centers.  We already have

          3  identified a number of potential partners that

          4  indicated interest in working with us, and to our

          5  surprise, we found a lot of interest from the

          6  private sector. There are financial institutions

          7  that are very interested in educating parents, and

          8  educating adults in terms of learning more about

          9  financial literacy.  We are working with Ready- to-

         10  Learn Program.  I am a member of their National

         11  Advisory Board, and new content that will be

         12  developed with Ready- to- Learn will be presented

         13  for the first time to parents in these CBO's, and

         14  they will be able to interact with the producers of

         15  this content, and give their opinion and learn how

         16  to use it and how to use it with the kids.

         17                 The last point that I want to make is

         18  that we must find ways to not only look at minority

         19  and populations as consumers, but also as providers

         20  as well.  I think my organization is a very good

         21  example as to how a community- based organization

         22  can also help participate in incorporating and

         23  integrating technology into the process because we

         24  bring synergies and sometimes approaches that makes

         25  it even more effective, I am not saying more
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          2  effective but really different, and sometimes, yes,

          3  more effective to be able to integrate and to

          4  involve the intended user in this process.

          5                 Thank you very much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

          7  much.

          8                 Sir.

          9                 MR. THORPE:  I am Ron Thorpe, Vice

         10  President and Director of Education at

         11  Thirteen/WNET, the public television station here in

         12  New York City.

         13                 As a public television station, as

         14  the Council undoubtedly knows, we are chartered by

         15  the Board of Regents in New York State, and we take

         16  that role very, very seriously as well as our role

         17  as part of the University of the State of New York,

         18  what the commissioner calls USNY.

         19                 I may be the only person to testify

         20  today who is going to speak only about content, and

         21  of course, it is the technology that allows us to

         22  deliver this content into the classrooms.

         23                 You know public television as a

         24  strong provider and producer of content for early

         25  childhood.  You certainly know the work we do with
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          2  GED and Pre- GED, we just had our graduation last

          3  week, 102 very proud graduates came to the station

          4  to get their GED certificate last week.

          5                 But I want to speak very briefly

          6  about what we are doing for K- 12 education in this

          7  state, and I want to do that through two very

          8  specific examples.

          9                 In elementary math, we have an award-

         10  winning series called CYBERCHASE.  It is an animated

         11  series, it is on five days a week, and it deals with

         12  all kinds of learning issues related to math.  We

         13  went out and secured outside funding to provide

         14  training to, so far, 70 percent of all of the

         15  elementary math coordinators in New York City in the

         16  use of CYBERCHASE in the classroom.  Now that is

         17  training that was very important that the schools

         18  did not pay for, the Council did not pay for, and it

         19  is content that no one paid for either, nor do we

         20  charge the schools for these things.  It is no

         21  wonder that we have to put on pledge drives all the

         22  time.  CYBERCHASE has been a phenomenon for

         23  elementary school math, and New York City has

         24  embraced it wholeheartedly as have many other

         25  districts in the country.
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          2                 The other thing that I want to tell

          3  you about that we are working on, I do not know how

          4  many of you have actually seen the thousand page

          5  text book that students in this state use for global

          6  history and geography, they are required- one of the

          7  five requited Regents courses.  That is a very

          8  dense, opaque, two- year course that we put students

          9  through.  We have heard about competing in a global

         10  society and understanding about issues around the

         11  globe.  It is extremely difficult using that text

         12  book alone to get students interested in Rwanda for

         13  examples, a required part of that curriculum when

         14  there is only a one- and- a- half inch sidebar on

         15  Rwanda embedded in that thousand page book.

         16                 I can show those students, I could

         17  show you a three minute clip from our wide- angle

         18  program on the woman of Rwanda, and it would open

         19  whole worlds to those students and those teachers

         20  that they could then enter and start to wrestle with

         21  that material the way they need.  We went out and

         22  got money from JP Morgan- Chase and the corporation

         23  for public broadcasting to take our wide- angle

         24  series, and find clips that aligned to the existing

         25  state curriculum, and we just launched that, it is
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          2  up for free for all teachers of global history and

          3  geography in this state, and the 200,000 students

          4  who are enrolled in that class.

          5                 We hope to systematically go through

          6  the Regents requirements, and create those visual-

          7  that powerful visual content, and get it up there

          8  and out there for teachers and students at no cost.

          9  We are also prepared to do the training. We do this

         10  here in New York City, as 13, our sister station

         11  WLIW, which is also part of the educational

         12  broadcasting corporation does it for Long Island,

         13  and we also coordinate with the other seven public

         14  television stations in the state to make sure this

         15  is statewide.

         16                 We appreciate your personal support,

         17  Councilwoman Brewer, for public television.  You

         18  have been a great fan of ours, and we hope that that

         19  support continues, and we are eager to continue to

         20  serve the City of New York.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  I want to thank

         23  you.  I could spend all day asking questions.  We

         24  are just under a time constraint but we are going to

         25  follow up as I have told all panels, and I think
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          2  those of you who know me, I am not kidding.

          3                 So, thank you so much for being here,

          4  and we will go to the next panel but not forget what

          5  you had to say.

          6                 Ellen Meier, please, Center for

          7  Technology and School, Lisa Ernst from Thinkquest,

          8  Stan Silverman from NYIT, Mark Gura from Fordham,

          9  and Ted Brown, CUNY for Software Installation.

         10                 Whoever would like to begin.  I know

         11  we are running a little late here, so go ahead.

         12                 MS. MEIER:  I will start.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Good.

         14                 MS. MEIER:  My name is Ellen Meier.

         15  I Co- Direct the Center for Technology and School

         16  Change at Teachers College, Columbia University.

         17                 I wanted to thank you for the

         18  opportunity to explore some of these important

         19  issues this afternoon, and in particular,

         20  Chairperson Brewer, I wanted to thank you for your

         21  ongoing and continued interest in the appropriate

         22  and equitable use of technology.  For years, you

         23  have been looking at this issue.

         24                 I wanted to begin with a story that

         25  illustrates something that has not really been
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          2  addressed so far in the hearings this afternoon.  A

          3  story that represents the disconnect, if you will,

          4  that I feel we are currently experiencing in the

          5  schools between an emerging culture of change and

          6  innovation, and a culture of accountability.

          7                 A principal was scheduled to observe

          8  a teacher one morning.  When he arrived at the

          9  classroom, the students were working in small groups

         10  around computers distributed in the classroom

         11  intently discussing their social studies project

         12  that the were about to explore on- line.  The

         13  teacher was circulating among the groups of students

         14  helping them to clarify and solve the problem.  The

         15  principal came to the door and looked around the

         16  classroom, he saw a class working intently in small

         17  groups, highly involved, intent on their projects,

         18  he paused and said to the teacher, "Well, I was

         19  going to do your observation today, but I will come

         20  back when you are really teaching."

         21                 What is "really teaching"?  What does

         22  it look like?  How do students experience it, and

         23  how will we know if it is working?  These are the

         24  questions that lie at the heart of the questions

         25  facing today's educators who are, on the one hand,
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          2  exhorted to use technology and innovate with new

          3  approachers, and, on the other hand, face strict

          4  accountability standards with serious consequences

          5  for their students and their schools.

          6                 I am going to skim through this.  I

          7  will give you the topic sentences, but I think it is

          8  important to say a few things.

          9                 First, the topic today obviously is

         10  student achievement through technology.  Everybody

         11  hopes since computers were introduced into

         12  classrooms in the 60's that it would be the "silver

         13  bullet", IQ scores would go up, everything good

         14  would happen with the onslaught of technology but

         15  unfortunately, the research tells us that

         16  technology's impact on achievement is uneven at

         17  best.  There is a new book out by Wenglinsky, and he

         18  summarizes some great research, and he says that

         19  technology is going to be used or misused, depending

         20  essentially on the teachers' quality of instruction,

         21  and that moves us right into the discussion of

         22  professional development.

         23                 Technology itself is not going make

         24  the difference, it is how teachers use that

         25  technology that is going to make the difference.  I
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          2  have a section in here on cognitive science, what we

          3  are learning about learning, which is really

          4  important.  All of what we are learning, however, is

          5  easier said to implement than we would like.

          6                 At the Center for Technology and

          7  School Change, we do teach teachers technology bit

          8  we have learned that we have to also teach them a

          9  design process for integrating what it is they are

         10  trying to do with the technology into emerging

         11  understandings of curriculum.  The third thing we do

         12  then is to help teachers go back into the classroom,

         13  and we support them in their projects so they are

         14  not left to flounder alone.

         15                 Students are coming to us fully

         16   "digitized", if you will, some claim that the

         17  digital tools are changing, in fact, students

         18  brains, that the physiology is changing.  Linda

         19  Stone in a very interesting booked called Smart Mob

         20  discusses the phenomenon of "continuous partial

         21  attention" that students maintain as they go between

         22  their iPods, their mobile phones, and their computer

         23  screens, they are able to do all of those things.

         24  Those of us over 25 struggle, but they have no

         25  problem.
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          2                 New York City classrooms need to be

          3  technology rich and they need to have strong

          4  technological support.  These are necessary, as you

          5  were talking to some of the New York City people,

          6  these are necessary but not sufficient conditions

          7  for transforming our classrooms into powerful

          8  learning environments. What is still needed is

          9  ongoing professional development that goes beyond

         10  technology application training, which is where we

         11  tend to get stuck.  We need a strong professional

         12  development infrastructure to help teachers design

         13  technology- infused curriculum projects, and I have

         14  some more on the literature and what is telling us.

         15  I also co- chair a Technology, a USNY, Technology

         16  Policy and Practice's Committee.  The Board of

         17  Regents are very interested in what is happening

         18  with technology in the state, and they have

         19  appointed a 28- member board to bring together

         20  museums.  Ron Thorpe is on our board, there are a

         21  lot of interest in trying to bring all these

         22  resources together.

         23                 I will conclude, as we begin to

         24  gather data about an evaluation about technology

         25  implementation, it is important for us to develop

                                                            165

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT AND EDUCATION

          2  our educational vision by the use of technology.

          3  Technology is not going to improve the educational

          4  process by taking the status quo and making it

          5  faster or more efficient, simply "tacking on" some

          6  technology projects to the existing curriculum,

          7  which is frankly what tends to happen.  We have the

          8  opportunity to use technology and emerging findings

          9  from cognitive science to stimulate and develop our

         10  thinking about teaching and learning as it should be

         11  and could be.  With a strong professional

         12  development infrastructure, technology can be used

         13  as a catalyst for these changes, as well as a tool

         14  to help implement the changes.  The challenges that

         15  face us are represented by that principal I

         16  mentioned in my opening story. His definition of

         17  what is "really teaching" must expand and change as

         18  we develop more thoughtful approaches for creating

         19  active learning environments which support teaching

         20  and learning for the 21st Century.

         21                 I thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 Mr. Brown.

         25                 Ellen, we will follow up with all
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          2  your testimony, thank you, it will be part of the

          3  record.

          4                 Go ahead.

          5                 MR. BROWN:  Hi, thank you for giving

          6  me an opportunity to speak.

          7                 I am Ted Brown.  I am the Executive

          8  Director of a CUNY Institute for Software Design and

          9  Development, and I am also the chair of the Computer

         10  Science Program, the PhD. Program at CUNY.

         11                 For the past five years, I am going

         12  to be very short to keep it going so that you will

         13  have time for other things.

         14                 CUNY, the Software Institute has been

         15  very helpful in city agencies in giving interns in

         16  IT, and we would like to continue to do that with

         17  the Board of Education.  We already have interns in

         18  the Board of Education.

         19                 I would say the main thing that I

         20  want to emphasize today is, maybe three things,

         21  support, support and support.  What is missing

         22  really from the system in the Department of Ed is

         23  support.  There is a, one- tenth of our region is

         24  about the size of a college, I mean, a middle- sized

         25  college. Now, colleges have a lot of support staff
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          2  of different types, and six schools do not have that

          3  same support staff.  Let me give you an example of

          4  the different type of--.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  The principals

          6  tell me that all of the time.  Go ahead.

          7                 MS. BROWN:  Not surprising, but

          8  people have expertise and are hired- there are

          9  network and infrastructure support people, that is

         10  their livelihood, that is what they know, that is

         11  what they study.  Those are the people that keep the

         12  network going.  Now, there is sort of what

         13  businesses call the "last mile".  The Board of

         14  Education may have a great infrastructure up to the

         15  school, but if the schools' infrastructure is not

         16  there, then there is something missing for the

         17  school.  There is hardware support, now the

         18  Department of Ed has spoken about that.  That is not

         19  so difficult if you have support from the

         20  manufacturers, and you just send the machines back

         21  when there is a problem.  If it takes longer, that

         22  is something to do but I do not think the schools

         23  need experts in hardware support.  That can be

         24  carried over.

         25                 System support, there are people that
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          2  know operating systems well, and are support in

          3  colleges and businesses just for operating systems.

          4  They know when releases come in how to take care of

          5  viruses, how to take care of the systems in general.

          6

          7                 There are software support people,

          8  people that know the applications well, can help in

          9  well, in this case, the teachers or the students.  I

         10  mean, the main emphasis here should be how to

         11  empower the teachers so that they can empower the

         12  students to learn better, and without these kind of

         13  supports, it is not going to happen.

         14                 The last kind is instructional

         15  support, which with PD, but that is a very important

         16  thing.  Software changes all the time, hardware

         17  changes which requires schools to buy new equipment

         18  every few years, there is like a three year life

         19  span of a computer, and you have to have this kind

         20  of instructional support too, to empower the

         21  teachers.

         22                 That is really what I wanted to say,

         23  the long- term solution is for the schools to buy,

         24  to pay, for these types of things.  The short- term

         25  solution would be people like CUNY with internships
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          2  that would help, and others like MOUSE and others

          3  that would help.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

          5  much, I really appreciate it.

          6                 We are going to include in the record

          7  Stan Silverman, Director, Technology Based Learning

          8  Systems, New York Institute of Technology, his

          9  terrific testimony, and then we have four people who

         10  signed up at the end.  It is a two- minute clock.

         11  Mark Gura, Patricia Wong, Joseph Kirch and Charlotte

         12  Rubin.

         13                 Go ahead, introduce yourself.

         14                 MS. WONG:  My name is Trisha Wong,

         15  and I am going to be speaking from the perspective

         16  as a consultant, and as a teacher who has worked

         17  around the world, and I am not attached to a program

         18  but I do work with, in the Hunts Point in South

         19  Bronx, and also in Bedford Styvesant in Brooklyn.  I

         20  have worked with organizations globally within China

         21  and also with the U.N. As a way to observe part of

         22  my research for teaching.

         23                 My perspective for technology, and

         24  the reason why I felt it was very important to come

         25  speak today was to speak for students who I work
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          2  with in low- income communities and who are

          3  marginalized, and i specialize in participatory

          4  technology, and new media technology working with

          5  WEB 2.0 companies as a way of bringing Silicon

          6  Valley money to schools, and non- profits and after-

          7  school development programs.

          8                 Specifically, there was a story in

          9  Bed- Sty where we worked with the students on media

         10  literacy, and we asked them to Google up Bed- Sty,

         11  Bedford- Styvesant and what would come up, and

         12  everything that came up was crack cocaine, killing,

         13  murder, deaths, you know, rapes, fire, arson,

         14  everything that was negative.  I asked the students

         15  why do you think this is?  And they said the media

         16  is just negative, that is just how they are. So, we

         17  said, what do you think would happen if you Google

         18  Park Slope in Brooklyn?  They said, "Oh, it is

         19  probably going to be negative too."  But when we

         20  Googled Park Slope, it was positive images from

         21  greenstreets, brownstones, beets and vegetables and

         22  they said, "This is also what Bed- Sty is like."

         23  But I said, "Do you feel you have any control over

         24  this?"  And they said, "No." But then we introduced

         25  participatory technology tools, like blogging, doing
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          2  on- line photo- gallerying, hosting, and we said,

          3   "What if you could actually have the power to write

          4  what Bed- Sty means to you?"  And then, what if you

          5  could do a policy analysis, and we worked with Women

          6  of Color Policy Network at NYU to do a statistical

          7  mathematical study on how policy is enacted in the

          8  community, and how did this change happen?

          9                 So then, we can actually work with

         10  the history teachers to study about slavery, to

         11  study the history of Bed- Sty as a Dutch Colony, and

         12  to study current people, such as Shirley Chisholm.

         13                 So, the point of this is that if-

         14  this is an example where education can prepare a

         15  young person to become a global citizen but not only

         16  for a global citizen to know math or to get into

         17  college but one who can solve problems, and that

         18  problem starts sometimes within their very own

         19  community before they can go and save the world and

         20  save our nation.

         21                 So, the crisis is that young people

         22  are removed from civic engagement and youth and

         23  mini- communities do not have an on- line presence,

         24  and the reason we need a focus mostly on low- income

         25  communities and people who are marginalized is
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          2  because when policy is enacted, they are the ones

          3  who are in the greatest need to have a voice to

          4  represent, and to say that this is how policy

          5  affects us.  It is a big problem where it is not a

          6  lack of technology, the digital divide, it is fake

          7  because there is more cable access to digital cable

          8  in every low- income community and every project but

          9  why is there not enough broadband penetration.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  We are on the

         11  same page.

         12                 MS. WONG:  Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  You are

         14  terrific, but that is a great example of how it can

         15  be used.

         16                 MS. WONG:  So, one way to solve this

         17  is that we have to teach people to use technology

         18  that is not just one way, that is not like

         19  television where it is a one way feedback loop, that

         20  something the offers a two way feedback loop from

         21  blogging to new 2.0 services, and also this kind of

         22  stuff is totally is in line with the Board of Ed,

         23  the multiple Harvard Gardener is a multiple

         24  intelligence theory, where it can appeal to all at

         25  different ways.
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          2                 For the first time as my closing

          3  remark, is that we have to think about this globally

          4  in that we do have a very big opportunity here,

          5  where before all these technologies were very

          6  expensive, they were only for companies like Yahoo

          7  and AOL to use, were large institutions like the

          8  U.N. or the government.

          9                 But now for the first time, we have

         10  technology that is very inexpensive, it is not as

         11  issue of money.  For the first time it is now

         12  scalable down to the individual, someone like me can

         13  take a cell phone and capture something.  So, we

         14  have to teach our young people how to do that.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  I got it.  You

         16  are fabulous, I got it.

         17                 Thank you very much for testifying.

         18                 Mark Gura, do you want to go next?

         19  It is a hard act to follow, Sir.

         20                 MR. GURA:  Yes, I do, and I want to

         21  speak quickly and--.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Good because I

         23  am out of time.

         24                 MR. GURA:  I have five points I want

         25  to make briefly.
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          2                 One, I have been fortunate over the

          3  past couple of years since leaving the Department of

          4  Ed through my relationship with the Center for

          5  Digital Ed, and as a journalist, to speak to many of

          6  the heads of instructional technology from large,

          7  urban schools districts in the country.

          8                 I would like to suggest to this

          9  Committee and the Council that it is good to ask

         10  what is happening locally, but if you really want to

         11  understand the full picture, it is good to look at

         12  what other school systems in similar circumstances

         13  are doing.  I will give you a few examples.

         14                 It was just announced this week that

         15  in Little Rock, all teachers will have access to on-

         16  line PD, unlimited.

         17                 New York City School District used to

         18  have free on- line PD in ten areas, all of them

         19  relating to technology available for all teachers,

         20  all the time.

         21                 Chicago has a very robust on- line

         22  portal of curriculum in which they have mapped out

         23  their standards to lesson plans created by their

         24  teachers, using their technology. In Miami- Dade,

         25  every single student has access, 24/7, to River
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          2  Deeps, Destination Math, Destination Reading, and

          3  Destination Science.  Rich, robust, interactive

          4  state- of- the- art content, which makes all the

          5  difference.

          6                 If these other systems that have

          7  similar circumstances can have these wonderful

          8  resources, perhaps New York City should have them.

          9                 Point two, this past April the New

         10  York Post quoted the DOE as stating it has 296,011

         11  working computers in classrooms.  Today it was

         12  brought out that there are three Internet drops in

         13  every classroom.  Do some simple math, I would say

         14  that New York City schools are probably some of the

         15  most blessed, technology- rich already.  It is

         16  better than four students to a computer.  So

         17  clearly, reporting out on numbers of equipment is

         18  not the issue.  The issue is are the computers being

         19  used, to what extent, and how?

         20                 I wonder if there is some way we can

         21  create a vehicle or process from this Committee to

         22  answer that question. I do not believe there is such

         23  a way, and until there is, I do not think we can

         24  really think we can dig into what needs to be done.

         25                 I will gloss over some of the
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          2  others--.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  I really have to

          4  leave Mark, that is the problem.   Go ahead, I am

          5  listening but I have time constraints.

          6                 MR. GURA:  I am not going to--.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  You can just do

          8  it very quickly, if you do not mind.

          9                 MR. GURA:  Very, very quickly I think

         10  there needs to be a shift from citing beautiful

         11  examples of pilots and demonstration projects to an

         12  orientation that every youngster should be getting

         13  and using technology across the curriculum every

         14  day, and it is possible.  Furthermore in terms of

         15  PD, we at Fordham RETC, have already provided 150

         16  sessions via podcast PD free of charge.  So, there

         17  are inexpensive, easy to use technologies that can

         18  handle this deed, and we at Fordham would be happy

         19  to show them how.

         20                 One last point and a half.

         21  Unfortunately, I think a lot of individuals have

         22  been identified, or agencies, as identified as

         23  holding the responsibility why the change is not

         24  being made, I think we need to have a change in

         25  role, and I include myself in this.  We have to stop
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          2  moving this issue from instructional technologists

          3  to the people who supervise instruction in the

          4  subject areas at all levels, as long as it is in the

          5  technology court, we are not going to move on.

          6                 The last little thing I will say is,

          7  with my experience as the former director, and

          8  listening to everything in this room today, I do not

          9  see why we cannot have this for every youngster

         10  within a reasonable amount of time, a year, year and

         11  a half.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  I agree, thank

         13  you very much.

         14                 MR. GURA:  No reason not to have

         15  that.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you.

         17                 MR. GURA:  It is a question of will.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you.

         19                 Go ahead, Sir.

         20                 MR. KIRCH:  My name is Joseph Kirch.

         21  It is actually my first time speaking to the

         22  Council, so I appreciate you time.

         23                 I work with a company called

         24  Intercall, and Intercall is actually the largest

         25  company North America that specializes in
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          2  conferencing.  All we do is audio, web, and

          3  videoconferencing.  I have been working with the New

          4  York City Department of Education for about two

          5  years now in introducing such platforms as WebX,

          6  Microsoft Live Meeting, M- Show that allows for live

          7  video streaming, which I think might be a nice

          8  application for these sorts of forums that you do

          9  have running currently, where an application like

         10  forum would be able to be streamed out to the masses

         11  over a specific site.

         12                 What I have listened to throughout

         13  the course of the day are different ideas on

         14  technology.  What I would kind of like to bring to

         15  the table, and I had a presentation but I will keep

         16  it short, is to kind of introduce how platforms such

         17  as Microsoft, Live Meeting, and a WebX Solution can

         18  be integrated into all of these ideas behind the

         19  technological advances, introducing for distance

         20  learning to be able to a WebX or a training center

         21  platform for that sort of application.

         22                 I have been working with Irwin who

         23  had testified earlier, as well as Joseph DePersia

         24  (phonetic) in introducing these technologies, and

         25  even within the council, just being able to utilize
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          2  and be more cost effective with your time and travel

          3  and things according to that.  I know traveling

          4  within the City does take up time, but being able to

          5  utilize that sort of integrated platform such as

          6  Microsoft Live Meeting, or an M- Show application to

          7  be able to utilize that.

          8                 The third component is the

          9  videoconferencing.  We do provide multi- point

         10  bridging throughout the world, being able to provide

         11  IP to ISDN, and vice versa, so, I just kind of

         12  wanted to make our services known, and to be able to

         13  offer these type of applications to the districts.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Perfect timing.

         15                 MR. KIRCH:  Sure.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

         17  much.

         18                 This has been a great hearing.  We

         19  have lots of work to do.  I think all of the people

         20  who testified, my colleagues, the great staff, and I

         21  look forward to much more discussion on trying to

         22  accomplish what was outlined today.

         23                 Thank you very much.

         24                 (Hearing concluded at 4:19 p.m.)

         25
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          2  WRITTEN TESTIMONY OF:

          3  Stan Silverman

          4  Professor of Education NYIT School of Education

          5  and Professional Services

          6

          7                 It was almost 30 years ago that my

          8  principal came to my classroom to ask me if I would

          9  represent the district at a conference on using

         10  computers in schools.  My immediate response to his

         11  request was you have got to be kidding.  As the

         12  measures that schools use to "evaluate" teachers I

         13  was viewed as an effective teacher, my students

         14  having good test scores and very little in the way

         15  of discipline issues.

         16                 The principal gave me the option of

         17  attending or changing my duty period to lunch so I

         18  naturally took the option of attending.  Like many

         19  teachers who are forced to the table for

         20  professional development, I was resentful and took

         21  that resentment out on the presenters.  As I was

         22  leaving the conference, one of the presenters popped

         23  out of his office and offered me a "free" computer

         24  with the only condition being that I use it in my

         25  classes.  No teacher turns down free stuff, so I
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          2  left with a Commodore Computer with a serial number

          3  0000032.

          4                 At the time I had a teaching schedule

          5  that included AP Physics, Regents Physics and what

          6  would now be viewed as AIS science.  The range was

          7  from the best students in the school to the worst

          8  (as measured by class placement).  A number of

          9  transformational things occurred in that classroom a

         10  result of that computer that impacted both the

         11  students from an instructional point of view and me

         12  as a teacher.

         13                 The first observation was that the

         14  students where all asking the same questions (albeit

         15  using determine technology).  This had never

         16  happened in my classes.  The second observation was

         17  that I did not have the answers to their questions.

         18  Normally, if they waned to know why the sky was blue

         19  or the sunset red, or why birds can fly, I was there

         20  with the answer.  I simply did not know the answers

         21  to their questions, and for the first time they saw

         22  me as a learner and I was modeling for them how I

         23  addressed their questions.

         24                 At that time there was little

         25  software and the computer only came with one
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          2  program, Tic- Tac- Math.  In that game the students

          3  earned X and O's by solving math problems.  We all

          4  know that students need to practice, but it is tough

          5  to get students who already have low self worth as

          6  defined in their studies to do the problems.  I had

          7  no such problem when they had the same problems on

          8  the computer.

          9                 In two years I had managed to get a

         10  computer for each of the 30 students in my

         11  classroom.

         12                 There are folks like Oppenheimer

         13  (Flickering Mind) who have challenged the use of

         14  instructional technology in schools and has based

         15  his conclusions on some observations he has made in

         16  a number of schools.  His basic premise is that the

         17  dollars spent on technology would be better spent on

         18  decreasing class size, getting more textbooks, et

         19  cetera.

         20                 Oppenheimer's questions are good ones

         21  but he has failed to understand the dynamics of the

         22  changes in society, and the workings of the teaching

         23  and learning environment.  As a society we are

         24  facing a fundamental change in the way our community

         25  receives, interprets and uses information.  This
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          2  change is no less dramatic than the changes

          3  associated with the printing press, but are

          4  occurring at a much more rapid rate.  The nature of

          5  the way members of our community receive and decode

          6  information is dynamically different as we look at

          7  the stratification by age.  Students when asked

          8  about email now suggest that it is something you

          9  send to old people.  One has only to walk into the

         10  Time Warner building and go to the Samsung "store"

         11  to see where the international community is going in

         12  terms of communications technologies.  When I visit

         13  my wife's vocational school, I no longer can

         14  identify the tools in the auto shop as their shop

         15  has more the appearance of a network closet than an

         16  old oil changing station.  It is clear that an

         17  imperative for the assurance of our students ability

         18  to conform to the world of work that we must teach

         19  them the essential 21st century skills.

         20                 Equally important are the

         21  instructional issues that confront us.  While the

         22  schools are making great strides forward in

         23  narrowing the instructional gaps, we are not close

         24  to the goal of increasing performance for all

         25  students.  We have a responsibility to every student
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          2  who walks (or types) their way into one of our

          3  school buildings to make him or her better than when

          4  they entered.  It is in this area that technology

          5  has made the biggest promises but until now has

          6  failed to deliver on the promises.  The key to

          7  remember here is the now funny images we have a

          8  people try to create a flying machine and while they

          9  were all failures at the end, they served to move us

         10  to Kitty Hawk. We must not let the failures of the

         11  past be used to stop a good idea but rather use the

         12  noble failures as the learning foundation for what

         13  does work.  Just at the first plane soared (well

         14  almost) at Kitty Hawk, so too will our students and

         15  teachers if given the right instructional tools and

         16  support.

         17                 The key to achievement for all

         18  students is to understand the critical drivers that

         19  help build the foundations for success.  These

         20  drivers can be broken down into six categories:

         21                 Planning based on specific needs.

         22                 Professional Development.

         23                 Touchable technology, not flavor of

         24  the month.

         25                 Sustainable technology
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          2  implementations.

          3                 Partnerships based on common

          4  interest, not exploitation.

          5                 Ongoing Assessment and design

          6  adaptation.

          7                 One of our problems has been that

          8  many technology projects have in the past been

          9  driven by technology companies whose success (as

         10  defined by stockholders) is expressed in the number

         11  of boxes shipped.  This process has resulted in the

         12  buy first and plans in parallel, or after the fact

         13  syndrome.  One would never build a new Jumbo Jet

         14  without knowing that there was a need it filled, or

         15  train the pilots, build the runways, determine the

         16  appropriate subcontractors and figure out the number

         17  of bathrooms before you started rolling them off the

         18  production line.

         19                 The core of our educational system is

         20  its human capital, the teachers, para professionals

         21  and administrators.  So it is essential that we

         22  provide the support that they need to understand,

         23  use and apply the technology so that it meets the

         24  instructional needs of their students and in their

         25  context.  We must avoid professional development
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          2  that assumes one size fits all.  Using the data that

          3  the DOE is collecting we can begin to look at gaps

          4  in performance and targets for instructional

          5  opportunities and to custom craft the professional

          6  development.

          7                 Working closely with the UFT Teacher

          8  Center, I have seen them reject training for the

          9  sake of a companies attempt to push a specific box

         10  and embrace strategies that are centered on

         11  instruction and which use technology to meet the

         12  needs of their students.  Recently, I have seen them

         13  work with Intel, Dell, Apple, Adobe, Smart and

         14  Verizon to put together a plan to support teachers

         15  by providing low cost access to the technology and

         16  integrated training.  This will help ensure that the

         17  focus stays on the essential goal of improving the

         18  classroom experience for all students.

         19                 Once we have the data on the

         20  instructional needs, it is essential that we match

         21  those needs with the specific technologies that best

         22  meet that need, can be easily adopted in schools and

         23  sustained over time.  My lab serves as an R and D

         24  site for all the Teacher Centers in NYS, as well as

         25  for a number of BOCES.  We constantly receive
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          2  technology to evaluate which would make the best

          3  nerds quiver with excitement.  These technologies

          4  would probably produce significant gains in a small

          5  number of cases but lack the critical elements; are

          6  they touchable, can the majority of students and

          7  teachers use them without significant training and

          8  support, are they affordable without the need for

          9  uncertain grant funds, are they sustainable over

         10  time?

         11                 The technologies/services we look for

         12  are those that can have long- term predictable

         13  impact on instruction.  One case study for this is

         14  the MarcoPolo NY effort.  Working with the Teacher

         15  Centers, we have taken the free MarcoPolo resources

         16  produced by the national professional organizations,

         17  and aligned them directly to the NYC standards, key

         18  ideas, performance indicators and grade banding.

         19  The net result is that the site that leads teachers

         20  to these resources has had over eight million hits

         21  since November 1, 2005 with an astonishing 55

         22  percent of the hits occurring outside the school

         23  day.  The teachers are asking for additional

         24  training on how to use this with ELL students, work

         25  with parents and target special populations of
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          2  students.

          3                 Another case in point is the use of

          4  the Video on Demand services available through WNET.

          5    Utilizing funds from NYS, the Public Television

          6  Stations are providing free video content and are

          7  currently working to align that content to the NYS

          8  standards.

          9                 The key to these case studies is not

         10  only they were easily touchable by the teachers and

         11  the students, but also, that they are sustainable

         12  over time.  Teachers will shy away from technology

         13  efforts (and should) that they believe will

         14  disappear immediately after the grant funding has

         15  ended.

         16                 Promising technologies that have

         17  potential for significant impact in our schools are:

         18                 Videoconferencing (EEZ and school to

         19  school)

         20                 Audio/Video private casting

         21                 One to One (computers/handhelds)

         22                 Probeware

         23                 Web 2.0

         24                 Essential to any sustainable

         25  technology effort is the creation of partnerships.
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          2  We all too often overlook the potential partners

          3  that make up USNY and too often job outside of the

          4  family to outside vendors.  It is essential that the

          5  capacities that are found in CUNY, SUNY, private

          6  colleges and universities, PBS, and the Public

          7  Libraries be minded for resources, and that

          8  strategic mutually beneficial and long- term

          9  partnerships be created.  All to often the USNY

         10  community is spending many times what it should

         11  because we are not aggregating the needs and cost

         12  sharing against the aggregation.  This type of

         13  approach will reduce costs but also deepen the

         14  relationships that are needed to sustain long- term

         15  technology projects.

         16                 Partnerships with corporation, Not

         17  for Profits and foundations are also critical to the

         18  success of technology for instructional purposes.

         19  The incredible success of the MarcoPolo project was

         20  built on the six year long partnership with MCI (now

         21  Verizon) and has resulted in utilization numbers

         22  that no one could have predicted.  This partnership

         23  has also led to the National Council of Teachers of

         24  English offering to build specific free web- based

         25  lessons to meet the instructional gaps in ELA, work
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          2  with the UFT on customized training in adolescent

          3  literacy and develop distance learning based

          4  training designed to provide Just Enough and Just In

          5  Time professional development to all teachers.

          6                 The recent work with Intel, Dell,

          7  Apple, et cetera, has shown that one can build

          8  partnerships in which the focus can remain on the

          9  students and the teachers while meeting the internal

         10  agendas of the individual partners.  The key to

         11  success of these projects is that they be designed

         12  based on the real needs of the end user and not the

         13  end need of the commercials partners.  Needing to

         14  increase the number of boxes by two percent in a

         15  specific quarter are no doubt important to the

         16  company but what really must be the focus is the

         17  teaching and learning.  If that perspective remains

         18  in tact, these types of projects offer great

         19  potential by serving the need of our schools and

         20  generating a profit for the commercial interests.

         21                 The last driver is and must be

         22  ongoing assessment of how effective the

         23  instructional technology implementation has been and

         24  how it relates to other types of projects.  The

         25  projects much establish benchmarks for success and
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          2  relate those successes to the associated total cost

          3  of ownership (TCO).  The evaluation and assessment

          4  of these projects must be done holistically and not

          5  in isolation.  There are, in fact, technology

          6  solutions that may work but may not be as cost

          7  effective as other types of approaches.

          8                 The motto for my department at NYIT

          9  is Encourage the Heart and Enable the Mind, and it

         10  is our strong belief that technology is the major

         11  tool that is necessary to do both.

         12                 Thank you for you time.

         13                 (Hearing concluded at 4:19 p.m.)
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